-'l-..._‘:l"-_.-
HALTON Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Thursday, 19 October 2006 4.00 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

,,ﬂij:::i;> e > < /Z/

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Ellen Cargill (Chairman)

Councillor Diane Inch

Councillor Kath Loftus

Councillor Bowden

Councillor McGuire

Councillor Topping

Councillor Banner

Councillor Hoyle

Councillor Johnson

Please contact Caroline Halpin on 0151 471 7394 or e-mail
caroline.halpin@halton.gov.uk for further information.



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No. Page No.

1. AGENDA 1-93

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

o
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Town Hall, St. Helens, Merseyside, WA10 1HP
Telephone 01744 456110 (Tina Molyneux)

Warrington Borough Council “

Agenda

STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
5 BOROUGHS PARTNERSHIP NHS TRUST

Proposals Relating to Improving Services
for Adults with Mental Health Needs in
Halton, St. Helens and Warrington

Date: Thursday, 19 October 2006 Time: 4.00 p.m. Venue: Civic Suite, Runcorn Town Hall,
Hall Heath Road
Runcorn, Cheshire WA7 5TN

Membership
Halton 3 Councillors Cargill (Chairman), Inch and Loftus

St. Helens 3 Councillors Bowden (Vice Chairman), McGuire and Stephanie Topping
Ronan (Substitute for Councillor McGuire)

Warrington 3 Councillors Banner, Hoyle and Johnson

ltem Title Page

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2006 1
3 Declarations of Interest from Members Verbal Report
4  Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee - Final Report 7
5 Response from 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust Verbal Report

6 Further Action Verbal Report



Page 2



Page 3
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

5 BOROUGHS PARTNERSHIP NHS TRUST PROPOSALS RELATING TO IMPROVING

SERVICES FOR ADULTS WITH MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS IN

HALTON, ST. HELENS AND WARRINGTON

Minutes of the meeting of this Committee held on
7 September 2006

(Members Present) Halton Council

(Not Present)

(Also Present)

Councillors Cargill and Loftus

St. Helens Council

Councillors Bowden, McGuire and Stephanie Topping

Warrington Council

Councillors Hoyle, Johnson and Wright

Halton Council
Councillor Inch

Warrington Council
Councillor Banner

Halton Council

Dwayne Johnson, Strategic Director, Health and Community
Audrey Williamson, Operational Director Adults of Working Age

St. Helens Council

Carole Swift, Service Manager Carers and Scrutiny

Mike Wyatt, Assistant Director, Performance and Business Support
Warrington Council

Alison Williams, Overview and Scrutiny Officer

Helen Sumner, Strategic Director, Community Services

Tina Molyneux, (Clerk to the Committee),
Senior Democratic Services Officer, St. Helens Council

19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Banner and Inch. Councillor
Wright attended as substitute for Councillor Banner.

20 MINUTES

*

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 24 August, 2006
be approved and signed.



Page 4
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS

No Declarations of Interest from Members were made.

RESPONSE TO PUBLIC CONSULTATION (MENTAL HEALTH STRATEGIE
REPORT) | |

A report was submitted which informed Members of the Response to the Public
Consultation (Mental Health Strategies Report).

Carole Swift, Service Manager Carers and Scrutiny outlined the report.
The report detailed the following:

. Executive Summary

. Introduction

. Methods

. Raw Data Collection for Public Consultations

- Public Consultation Introduction
- Public Consultation Process

- Staffing Table

- Resources Table

- Communication Table

- Accessibility Table

- Services Table

- Overall Public Comments Chart

. Raw Data Collection for Staff/Internal Consultations

- Staff/Internal Consultation Introduction
- Staff/Internal Consultation Process

- Staffing Table

- Resources Table

- Communication Table

- Accessibility Table

- Services Table

- Overall Public Comments Chart

. Common Issues across Public and Staff Consultations
. Raw Data Collection from all other Correspondence

. Summary and Overarching Issues

. Area for Consideration

Members discussed the report.

* Resolved that the report be noted.



23

24

25

Page 5
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

FEEDBACK FROM VISIT TO NORFOLK

A report was tabled which detailed the findings of the Visit to Norfolk Mental Health
Services on 29-31 August 2006.

The report provided stakeholders information in relation to the visit to Mental Health
Services in Norfolk and made recommendations as to how local Mental Health
Services may learn from the ‘Norfolk’ experience.

* Resolved that the report be noted.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION FROM THE 5 BOROUGHS PARTNERSHIP NHS
TRUST

It was reported that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust had neither provided any
general financial information or the specific financial information requested by the
Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee in time for consideration by the Statutory Joint
Scrutiny Committee.

General financial information had however been sent to the Chief Executive's of
each authority.

* Resolved that the Committee express their disappointment to the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust at the lack of financial information.

STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - DRAFT REPORT

A draft report was submitted which set out the findings of the Statutory Joint
Scrutiny Committee established by Halton Borough Council, St Helens Council and
Warrington Borough Council to consider the 5 Boroughs Partnerships NHS Trust's
Proposals to Improve Services for Adults with Mental health problems (summarised
in the document “Change for the Better”). The report set out the background to the
consultation process, the methodology employed by the Committee and the
Committee’s findings in relation to various aspects of the proposals. The report
closes with a conclusion and recommendations for the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS
Trust.

The Committee formally thanked all those who had contributed to the scrutiny
process, and provided information for the Committee, which had helped in its
deliberations. The Committee acknowledge that much of the information had been
provided to demanding timescales, and would like to thank respondents for the
efforts that they have made.

The draft report was outlined through each point and Members made comments as
follows.

. A letter had been received by the Chairman which explained that Knowsley
did not wish to participate as they decided that the proposal did not constitute
a substantial variation

. Following the visit to Norfolk and Waveney it be noted that separate provision
was made for older people in Norfolk and not treated as adult inpatient wards

. Carers - the Committee believed their needs should have been explicitly
addressed



Page 6
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Committee wished to express their disappointment that they did not
receive any detailed financial information

The comparison with Norfolk and Waveney was flawed from a financial basis
as the model was implemented in Norfolk to modernise services with a
substantial level of investment rather than to achieve financial balance

The availability of Specialist Workers linked to GP Surgeries in Norfolk and
Waveney was perceived as one of the benefits of the model

In Norfolk and Waveney separate inpatient facilities were provided for adults
and older people

Consultation process appeared to be in accordance with minimum
requirements

The Committee felt that in the consultation report it made a recommendation
that “the general direction and framework of the new proposed model be
adopted by the Trust with due consideration” and that the focus should have
been on the outcome of consultation rather than making recommendations

The Committee were unable to identify whether a risk assessment of the
proposals had been carried out and whether effective risk management
arrangements were in place

Concerns were expressed about proposals relating to Thorn Road Day Centre

The Committee supported the view reported in the analysis of public and
internal consultation that the Hollins Park site is stigmatising and isolating and
that the Gatehouse service offered a more appropriate venue

There appeared to be a lack of agreement between Warrington Primary Care
Trust and the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust as to the proposed levels of
investment to support the model of care. This left the Committee with grave
concerns about the future safety and viability of the service

The lack of clarity about staffing proposals and appropriate workforce
planning

The Committee felt recommendations 1 and 2 should be merged

Recommendation 2 to read that:

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust and the relevant primary care Trusts
should work closely to ensure that the necessary investment and range of
community services are available to support the implementation of any model
of care

Halton and St Helens Primary Care Trusts, and Warrington Primary Care
Trust, should review spend on mental health services in the boroughs to
ensure that it is brought more closely in to line with national average, and that
it properly meets the needs of residents of the boroughs.

Recommendation 3 to read:

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust should respond in writing to the
Committee about the issues raised in the report and the recommendations
within 28 days of its receipt.

The Committee unanimously agreed the report.



Page 7
STATUTORY JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Committee thanked all officers involved in the Statutory Joint Scrutiny
Committee for their diligent work throughout the process.

*

Resolved that:
(1) the report be noted;

(2) the amendments be made to the report as requested by the
Committee;

(3) there be delegated to the Chair, Councillor Cargill, Vice Chair,
Councillor Bowden and representative Member from Warrington,
Councillor Hoyle to agree the final report;

(4) the final report be forwarded to the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS
Trust; and

(5) The Committee thanked all officers involved in the Statutory Joint
Scrutiny Committee for their diligent work throughout the
process.

-000-

&t



Page 8



Page 9

Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust

Proposals Relating to Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health Needs

[n Halton, St Helens and Warrington

1 . Introduction

This report sets out the findings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee established by
Haiton Borough Council, St Helens Council and Warrington Borough Council to
consider the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust's Proposals to Improve Services for
Adults with Mental Health Problems (summarised in the document “Change for the
Better”). The report sets out the background to the consultation process, the
methodology employed by the committee and the committee’s findings in relation to
various aspects of the proposals. The report closes with a conclusion and
recommendations for the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

The committee would like to formally thank all those who have contributed to the
scrutiny process, and provided information for the committee, which has helped in its
deliberations. The committee acknowledge that much of the information has been
provided to demanding timescales, and would like to thank respondents for the
efforts that they have made.

2. Background

On 1 June 2006 the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust launched a consultation
document “Change for the Better — Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health
Needs”. The consultation document proposed changes to mental health services for
adults in the four boroughs of Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington. The date
initially identified for the end of the statutory consultation process was 24 August.

Three of the four local authorities — Halton, St Helens and Warrington — considered
that the issues identified in the proposals would represent a substantial variation in
the provision of health services in their area. An agreement was reached to form a
Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee. Knowsley were invited to join the committee but
did not participate having decided that the proposal did not constitute a substantial
variation.

The committee met on 20 July, 10 August, 24 August and 7 September. The

committee was later informed that the timescale for response for statutory agencies,
including the committee, was extended to 15 September.

3. Methodology

The committee was established in accordance with the “Local Authority (Overview
and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002". The
committee comprised of three elected members from each of the local authorities

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committes Findings 30.08.06



Page 10

involved, and the decision was made by each local authority to waive political
proportionality.

The committee agreed the following terms of reference:-

* To establish a statutory joint committee to scrutinise proposals from the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust to improve services for people with
mental health needs in the boroughs of Halton, St Helens and
Warrington.

e To undertake the scrutiny of proposals in accordance with the Local
Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny Functions)
Regulations 2002, and the Directions to Local Authority (Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Functions) July 2003.

+ To complete a report outlining the statutory committee’s views of the
proposals and to make recommendations to the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust where relevant.

e  To monitor the Trust's responses to the report, and agree mechanisms
for the ongoing monitoring of future changes to mental health services.

The committee agreed protocols and methodology for its working practices. Having
read copies of the consultation document “Change for the Better” (attached as
Appendix 1), the committee identified key issues and established an outline work
programme, taking into account the tight timescales for the work.

The committee identified a list of key issues and wrote to the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust and invited them to attend the meeting and respond to these issues. A
copy of the 5§ Boroughs Trust response is attached as Appendix 2.

Similarly, the committee identified key issues for PCT commissioners in each of the
boroughs, and wrote to them with a list of key issues. The PCT'’s response is
attached as Appendix 3.

A press release was issued in each of the three boroughs, and written responses to
this were considered by the commitiee. The committee also considered a range of
other information including:-

* Afinancial report presented by the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

* Avreport of public consultation undertaken by Mental Health Strategies
working in association with the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust.

¢ Reports of visits by officers and some service users to Norfolk and
Waveney to see the model in operation.

Findings of the Committee

Impact on Service Users

. General

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



Page 11

The committee welcomes the aspirations of the model to see fewer people admitted
to hospital and more people provided with services in the community. The committee
also supports the model’s intention of ensuring stays in hospital are as short as
possible, and only those requiring hospital admission are admitted.

The committee is concerned, however, that the proposals in their present form do not
satisfactorily explain how these aspirations will be achieved. The committee’s
concerns are outlined in this report, and explained below. The committee is
concerned that deficiencies in the document and proposals, may actually lead to a
decrease in support and services for vuinerable adults with mental health problems,
particularly those living in the community.

Particular Client Groups

The committee notes that the document aims to improve services for adults with
mental health needs, and in section 1.3 of the consultation paper it explains a
number of service areas which are excluded from the process. The committee were
not able, therefore, to formally examine these services, but it has become clear
during the scrutiny process that there are many linkages between all these services,
and whilst acknowledging that work is being carried out in a number of areas, the
committee would still wish to make the following comments about a number of
groups which are not properly dealt with in the proposals.

»  Dual Diagnosis — the committee are not satisfied with the arrangements for
service users with a dual diagnosis of mental health problems and alcohol
and/or drug problems. However, they do acknowledge the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust's commitment in Section 2.3 ii of Appendix 2
assuring that this group will be given a high priority.

e Adults in secure environments and psychiatric intensive care units — the
committee understands that adults in these environments are being dealt
with separately. However, the proposals do seem to have some linkages
with these inpatient services and the committee are disappointed that these
have not been properly considered.

*  Personality Disorder — the committee feel that more attention should have
been paid to adults with a personality disorder as this is likely to impact on
community services.

*  Young People ~ the committee welcomed the high priority afforded to this in
section 2.3 appendix 2, but are concerned that the issue of young people
being admitted to adult wards is not being satisfactorily addressed, and the
reduction in in-patient beds may have some impact on young people over
the age of 16.

*  Older People - the committee is particularly concerned that the proposals do
not effectively meet the needs of older people, and do not link effectively
with the Older People’s Commissioning Strategy for the three boroughs.
The committee note and support the comments about ensuring that people
are not discriminated against in terms of their age, however, they believe
that this does not properly reflect the complex needs of older people,
particularly those older people requiring inpatient services. The committee
continue to have concerns about the proposals to have older people and

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



4.2

Page 12

younger adults on the same inpatient wards. Although the proposed model
is based on that developed in Norfolk and Waveney, the committee noted
that separate provision is made for older people in Norfolk and they are not
treated on adult inpatient wards.

The committee acknowledged the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust's
comments relating to developing a Commissioning Strategy for Older People
with Mental Health Needs, but feel that this should have been properly
considered and factored in to the proposals before they were published.

The committee feel that the issue of older people requires much more
detailed attention, particularly in relation to inpatient settings.

»  Carers - the committee note the view put forward by the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust that carers issues are implicit in the model.
However, the committee believes their needs should have been explicitly
addressed.

Financial Implications

The committee acknowledged that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust need to
ensure financial balance, and would wish to support the Trust in achieving this.

The committee have not been provided with thorough and detailed financial
information about the present and proposed services. Whilst acknowledging some of
the complexities of these issues, the committee is surprised that the financial
information is “continuing to be finessed” at such a late stage in the consultation
process. The committee are very disappointed that they did not receive any detailed
financial information and this is a serious deficiency in the model. Some very general
financial information was received on 7 September and this is attached as Appendix
4,

The Committee is aware that the overall level of investment in Mental Health
Services is significantly below the national average in Halton and St. Helens.
Although investment is close to the national average in Warrington, Warrington has
significant ongoing commitments to ex-Winwick Hospital residents who still live in the
Borough. In the light of this overall situation the proposals contained in the Model of
Care to significantly reduce expenditure on services and to dramatically reduce the
number of inpatient beds, is in the Committee’s view, likely to be impossible to
achieve.

The committee has made the following findings in relation to the financial implications
based on the information it had access to :-

* There s no detailed financial information in relation to the savings which
are to be achieved from back office functions (£1m) and the cost
releasing efficiencies savings (CRES) of £2.6m. It is not clear how these
savings will impact on adult mental health and other relevant service
areas.

* The model of care proposals rely heavily on capital investment. The
committee support concerns about the inadequacy of present facilities in
the three boroughs, and welcome the confirmation that capital funding for

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



4.3

Page 13

some of the developments has been achieved, but the fact that other
capital funding is still subject to bids at this late stage in the consultation
processes causes concern. The committee note that there do not appear
to be effective contingencies in place if the capital funding is not secured.

e Transitional resources — the committee feel that the issue of transitional
resources has not been properly addressed. Such a significant change
would require major investment, and the committee is not assured that
appropriate resources have been identified and/or put in place.

» The comparison with Norfolk and Waveney is flawed from a financial
basis as the model was implemented in Norfolk to modernise services
with a sustained level of investment rather than to achieve financial
balange. Norfolk and Waveney also had high levels of investment in
community services to support the development of the model.

* Ashton, Leigh & Wigan — the situation relating to Ashton, Leigh and
Wigan is difficult for the committee to understand. The committee
understands from various professional that the situation is complex, but
again, the committee feels that this should have been resolved prior to
the finalising of the proposals and the consultation process. The
Committee is concerned that the savings targets appear to be allocated
to only four of the five boroughs served by the Trust as Ashton, Leigh
and Wigan have been excluded.

» Out of Area Placements — the committee feels that the large reduction in
inpatient beds may actually have implications for both Primary Care
Trusts, and Social Care Services, in financing additional out of area
placements. The committee is not satisfied with the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust’s response that alternative services will be in
place, particularly in the early years of the model.

e The committee is confused about the issue of indirect costs which need
to be apportioned across different boroughs. Again, the committee felt
that this should have been addressed as part of the planning process,
and before the consultation stage was reached.

The limited financial information available to the committee indicates significant
disinvestment in each of the three boroughs. These shifts in expenditure are likely to
have a significant impact on services in the borough. When this is set against the
relatively low spend on mental health services which the 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust refers to, the committee has difficulty in seeing how the model can lead to
improved services for service users and carers.

Access to Services

The committee supports the view that community based services normally offer
better outcomes for service users and carers. However, the committee have strong
concerns about the fact that the reduction in inpatient beds, coupled with a significant
decrease in funding proposed, will see a tightening of eligibility criteria which will
impact on people’s access to mental health services. It seems clear that if the

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

-1



4.4,

Page 14

following factors are combined:-

A reduction in the number of inpatient beds,

An increase in the number of people receiving services in the community,
An overall decrease in staffing,

An increase in staffing in inpatient services,

An overall significant decrease in budgets,

that this will lead to a greater rationing of services. It is difficult to see how this fits
with the promotion of early intervention and community based services.

The committee also have concerns about proposals to have access and advice
centres in each borough. The committee is pleased that this issue is being actively
considered by the Trust, but is disappointed about the lack of detail in the response,
as it believes single points of access may actually serve to exclude some service
users, and that other models of access i.e. through primary care, may actually do
more to promote the types of services being proposed in the model. The availability
of specialist workers linked to GP surgeries in Norfolk and Waveney is perceived as
one of the benefits of the model.

Inpatient Services

The committee understands that if community services are enhanced, and
inappropriate admissions are avoided, then the number of inpatient beds will
decrease. However, the committee has serious concerns about the proposed
reduction in inpatient beds. The committee has the following concerns:-

» There does not appear to be any phasing of the reduction and the
assumption leads to dramatic reductions in Warrington and Halton, with the
number of beds in Halton reducing to 38 from 60, and in Warrington to 32
from 60.

= The committee notes that the number of beds is the lowest level
recommended by the Royal College of Psychiatrists, as stated by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust, but the committee feels that achieving
these lower level figures may not be realistic in the three boroughs.

* The 5 Boroughs Trust acknowledge in Appendix 2, Section 2.1 ii that this
level of beds is only recommended when the appropriate level of community
services is in place. The committee is not satisfied that these services are in
place in the three boroughs, and is concerned that the proposals will reduce
Community Services further.

* The recommended figures apply to the number of beds for adults under 65.
As the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust are presently proposing to include
inpatient beds for older people in the numbers, then it would appear that the
actual number of beds available to adults (excluding older people) would fall
below the minimum.

* In Section 2.1 ii of Appendix 2, the Trust states that many of the community
services are “already in place”. If this is the case, then the committee is
uncertain why inpatient facilities are presently experiencing levels of over-
occupancy, and how these community based services will manage when the

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

e

- 12



4.5

Page 15

number of inpatient beds have significantly decreased. The Committee
believe that current bed usage should be demonstrably reduced before
further bed reductions can be safely achieved.

The committee note the intention to combine inpatient services for adults
and older people, and acknowledge 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust
statements about age discrimination. However, the committee’s view is that
this over-simplifies the complexities of caring for adults and older people
with mental health needs in the same inpatient settings. The committee
notes that in Norfolk and Waveney where the model is said to be operating
effectively, separate inpatient facilities are provided for adults and older
people.

The committee has concerns about the need for young people to be
admitted to adult inpatient services, and whilst acknowledging that this is not
part of the consultation process, the committee believes that some issues do
need to be factored in to the proposals.

The committee are pleased that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust are
proposing an increase in staffing in the inpatient units, coupled with the
reductiorr in the numbers of beds, as this should lead to better services for
those inpatient residents. However, the committee has concerns about the
impact that this will have on community based services, as it would appear
to be likely to increase the staffing reductions in these areas.

The committee is concerned that there is a lack of clear information and
apparent analysis to demonstrate the impact of reduction in beds on
community services, and how this will be managed.

Resource and Recovery Centres (RRC)

The committee broadly welcomed the proposals to have resource and recovery
centres in each of the boroughs, and believe that the model of multi-agency services
offers the best outcomes for service users and carers. However, the committee have
a number of concerns about the proposals:-

Capital funding for the development of the centres has yet to be secured in a
number of cases, and there does not appear to be a clear contingency plan
should this funding not be available.

The significant drop in the number of beds does not seem to be realistic or
achievable.

Staffing issues are not clear, and the increasing of staff in resource and
recovery centres is likely to have a negative impact on Community Services.

The mixing of older people and younger adults in inpatient settings does not
seem to have been properly thought through.

The committee has concerns about the capacity of the resource and
recovery centres, particularly to provide community based services.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

14




4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 16

Assertive Outreach

The committee have noted Appendix 2, section 5, the comparison of assertive
outreach services. The committee notes the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust's
comments that services are being provided at higher levels of input than that for
which funding has been obtained. However, the committee is concerned that in
Warrington and St Helens the model does not allow for any increase in assertive
outreach, with the number on caseload remaining the same. The committee would
have expected that with the reduction in inpatient beds, more pressures might have
been placed on assertive outreach, and that further resources would need to be
identified.

Community Mental Health Teams

The committee acknowledges the commissioning strategies see the need for “a team
of multi-disciplinary practitioners providing ongoing care and support to people with
serious mental health problems”, The committee is surprised that the role of such a
team has not been more clearly thought out prior to the publication of the model, and
disappointed with the response from the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust that
“detailed operational issues will be progressed locally with LA and Trust staff.” This
may lead to an inconsistency in approach across the three boroughs and this
appears to be one of the issues which the model was seeking to address.

Impact on Other Mental Health Services

The committee acknowledged that other aspects of mental health services are not
part of the consultation process, but feel that the proposals contain issues which will
have clear implications for other services, particularly through the cost releasing
efficiencies savings and back office savings, and the committee believes that these
may have impact on a number of relevant services including:-

Services for people with a duel diagnosis,
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services,
Psychiatric intensive care services,

Secure services.

Impact on Council and Other Health Services

As the model states that it aims to ensure closer working relationships with partner
agencies such as "PCTs, Social Services, Housing Departments, voluntary agencies
and others”, then the committee are surprised that very little consideration seems to
have been given to the impact of the model on those services. In their response to
the committee, the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust 6.1 Appendix 2 do not provide
any detailed information about the impact on Council services, and the committee
has similar concerns for other Health agencies. The committee’s concerns can be
summarised as follows:-

* There is possible impact in relation to out of area placements.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

- 14



4.10

4.11

Page 17

» The tightening of eligibility criteria is likely to lead to increased pressures on
social care services and increased demands on Primary Care services.

* The increase in community services may well lead to implications for
housing providers.

» The impact on Local Authority staff seconded to, or working closely with, the
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust have not been properly considered.

Staffing

Itis clear to the committee that the proposals have significant staffing implications.
The committee were anxious that there seemed to be a lack of clarity about the
number and nature of posts to be deleted to secure the savings across front line
services and support service staff. Although pleased with the proposals to increase
staffing in inpatient settings to improve the quality of therapeutic work, the committee
believes that there is an inconsistency in that any increase in staffing in inpatient
services will lead to a greater decrease in staffing in community based services. Itis
therefore difficult to see how community services could be improved, and can
manage more cases.

The committee also believed that a change such as this needs to be accompanied by
a significant investment in staff development and training, and they have not been
able to identify clear plans for this.

Partnership Working

The Committee’s view is that the proposals appear to have been developed by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust in isolation of the wider primary care and social
care community. The key requirement of the Commissioning Strategy for the three
boroughs concerned is to redesign services on a Whole Systems basis. The
Committee is surprised that the model does not appear to have been developed in an
effective partnership, particularly as developing a recovery and social inclusion
approach clearly requires full partnership with local authority and other health
services.

Consultation Process

The committee acknowledged that the consultation process appears to be in
accordance with the minimum requirements of legislation relating to consultation.
The committee would, however, support the view of the PCTs (Section 8 Appendix 3)
that the application of the statutory minimum 12 week consultation period, in this
case, has generated “undue haste”,

The committee’s view is that this weakness has been compounded by the lack of
robust and accessible information to support the consultation process.

The committee has had sight of the analysis of public and internal consultations
“Change for the Better” published by Mental Health Strategies and the 5 Boroughs
Partnership NHS Trust. The committee note the findings of the consultation and
were surprised that the consultation report makes a principal recommendation that

Mike\reports\SBoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

oY

4
i



7.1

7.2

Page 18

“the general direction and framework of the new proposed model be adopted by the
Trust with due consideration”. The committee would have expected that the report
should focus on reporting the outcome of the consultation, rather than making
recommendations about the developments of services.

Implementation of Proposals

The committee feel that the timescales for the implementation of the proposals
require further, more detailed consideration. The committee were informed by the 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust that the original start date of October would be
delayed until early in the next year, and they were later informed by the Primary Care
Trust (Appendix 3 Section 8) that this would now be delayed until April 2007. The
committee welcomes the review of timescales but feels that the targets for
implementation are particularly challenging, and in the light of the issues identified in
this report, timescales need to be more carefully considered and a mode! developed
for the phased and effective implementation across all three boroughs. '

The committee was also of the view that proposals represent a significant variation in
services, and they have not been able to identify clear plans to resource and
implement the changes. The committee were not able to identify whether a risk
assessment of the proposals had been carried out and whether effective risk
management arrangements were in place. In the light of the proposed timescale for
implementation, the committee are particularly concerned about this, and feel that the
identification of additional resources from the Primary Care Trust of £0.5m to fund
transitional work may not be sufficient. For a major service change like this, the
committee would have expected detailed project plans to be put in place.

Borough Specific Issues

The committee identified a number of borough specific issues:-
Halton

There is confusion about an alcohol detoxification bed — the situation appears to be
that a bed has been in existence although it has never been properly funded or

commissioned, The bed is not contained in the proposals, and members of the

committee are concerned about the impact on services.

The committee had concerns about the proposals relating to Thorn Road Day
Centre.

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust has also been providing services for Helsby
and Frodsham, and there is a lack of clarity about how this will be resolved in the
future, and the impact that this will have on Halton's services. Associated proposals
would see the cost of a psychiatric intensive care bed being made to the borough of
£100,000 per annum (shared with St Helens).

Warrington

The committee support the view reported in the analysis of public and internal
consultation that the Hollins Park site is stigmatising and isolating and that the
Gatehouse service offers a more appropriate venue.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



7.3.

Page 19

Associated proposals would see the cost of a psychiatric intensive care bed of
£200,000 per annum for the borough. There is an issue of non-recurring financial
support from the PCT which the committee feels needs to be clarified and addressed.

There appears to be a lack of agreement between Warrington Primary Care Trust
and the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust as to the proposed levels of investment
to support the model of care. This leaves the committee with grave concerns about
the future safety and viability of the service.

St. Helens

The committee noted that the reduction in inpatient beds in St Helens had been
minimised by the closure of a hospital ward shortly before the consuiltation process

commenced.

An additional cost of £100,000 per annum has been identified for a psychiatric
intensive care bed (shared with Halton)

Conclusion

In the time available, the joint committee has thoroughly scrutinised the proposals
contained in the “Change for the Better” document.

The committee has found that the model in its present form has a number of
deficiencies:-

» A potentially negative impact on many service users and carers; with fewer
services available and a tighter rationing of those services.

» Potential negative impact on a number of associated client groups,
particularly older people;

¢ Failure to properly consider the needs of carers:
» Lack of clear financial information and plans;

* Lack of clear sources of capital funding and contingency plans / alternative
proposals if this is not secured:;

* Significant reductions in investment and staffing across the three boroughs;

» Changes in arrangements to access to services which would be likely to
lead to tighter rationing of services;

*  Significant reductions in the number of inpatient beds, possibly below the
minimum recommendations;

*  The lack of community based services being in place to properly support the
reduction of inpatient beds;

* The lack of clarity about the role of community mental health teams;

Mikelreports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

Y



9.1.

Page 20

The lack of clarity about the impact on other Local Authorities’ services, and
their ability to respond to changes;

The lack of clarity in relation to other Health services, particularly Primary
Care, and their ability to respond to changes;

The impact which the model might have on other mental health services in
the three boroughs;

The lack of a clear risk assessment and evidence of effective arrangements
for the management of risk;

The lack of clarity about staffing proposals and appropriate workforce
planning;

The haste with which the consultation process has been conducted;
The timescales for implementation of the proposals;
The lack of clear implementation plans and resourcing for transition;

The failure to properly consider other models of service.

Taking all of these issues into account, the committee has formed a view that the
proposal in its present form would not be in the interests of the Health Services in the
area of the three local authorities.

Recommendations

The Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee makes the following recommendations to the
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust:-

Recommendation 1

The model, in its present form, is not in the interest of Health services in Halton, St
Helens and Warrington. The model should therefore not be implemented in its
present form for the following reasons:-

There is no clear financial information available, and the financial
implications of the model are not properly understood.

The model is heavily reliant on securing appropriate capital funding. This
does not appear to be available, and there did not appear to be contingency
plans in place.

The model in its present form does not appear to offer the most appropriate
access to service users and this is in need of review.

Any reduction in inpatient services would need to be accompanied by
corresponding increases in community based services. There is no
evidence of an increase in community based services contained within the

Mikelreports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

- £ O
-



Page 21

model.

There would appear to be a potentially negative impact on service users
utilising mental health services in the three boroughs, and there is a
particular need to properly consider the needs of a number of groups
including:

Older people

People with a duel diagnosis

Young people

Carers

Adults in secure environments and psychiatric intensive units

The role of community mental health teams in the model needs to be
clarified.

There is no clarity about the impact on other Council services, and no
evidence of effective partnership working to agree them.

The impact on other health services, notably Primary Care, requires further
clarification before the model could be implemented.

The impact on 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust staffing and future
workforce strategy needs to be clarified before the model can be agreed.

The model has not been developed in full partnership with all interested
parties, particularly local authorities.

The proposals focus on recovery and social inclusion and yet demonstrate a
poor level of understanding and recognition of the vital contribution made by
local authority services within existing partnership arrangements to the
achievement of these important objectives

An implementation plan needs to be put in place, and appropriate
infrastructure and resources must be made available to implement the
proposed introduction of the model.

There is no evidence of an effective risk assessment of the implications of
introducing the model, and/or clarity surrounding risk management
arrangements.

9.2 Recommendation 2

The & Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust and the relevant Primary Care
Trusts should work closely to ensure that the necessary investment and
range of community services are available to support the implementation of
any mode! of care.

Halton and St Helens Primary Care Trust, and Warrington Primary Care

Trust, should review spend on mental health services in the boroughs to

ensure that it is brought more closely in to line with national average, and
that it properly meets the needs of residents of the boroughs.

Mike\reports\5BoroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06



Page 22

e The 5 Boroughs Partnership Trust, in partnership with the Primary Care
Trusts and Local Authorities, should work on a revision of these proposals,
which fully takes into account the above concerns.

9.3 Recommendation 3

The 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust should respond in writing to the Committee
about the issues raised in the report and the recommendations within 28 days of its

receipt.

The contact officer for this report is Mike Wyatt, Assistant Director, Performance and
Business Support, St Helens Council, Adult Social Care and Health, Gamble Building,
Victoria Square, St Helens WA10 1DY. Telephone 01744 456550.

Mike\reports\58oroughsScrutiny\Committee Findings 30.08.06

1
@
2
<>



APPENDIX |

Page 23

caidainals:

Yo jeauawi

I504L SN
] diysiauyied sybnoiog g

3N syu-diyssaupedsybnoiogg mmm alisqapy
3 syurdiyssupedsybnologe®@by pews
2S0¥99 62610 xed

60199 2610 W02 iy

000v99 52610 auoydajal.

YM8 ZVM
uojbuiuep
SOMUIM

SueT SujljoH
8SNOH Yed SuljjioH
siapenbpesy jsmu)

I5n2L SHN

gﬁ diysiaulied sybnosog g

%n°00° saIbsjENSY)EaY EJUSIU MMM BYSGIMA
L1004 S8. 1940 duoydsjal

960 0EW
Jaysayoueiy

$8j003

19318 Hagy

9SNOH uosiawg
soibajens uleaH jejusiy

SopHapwa s

U3eSH jejuswi

Aspueg uyor Aq peiiddns pue uaye) sainjold ©

1



Page 24

R Lo+

VAL

o¢
62
Ll
14
Sl

112

ON abeyd

éxau suaddey jeym g
duty nok op jeym £
&lopow mau ayj Joy Aed [im oyp 9
Paiapisuod am suondo 1oy §
|epowt MaN ¢
uojjenyis [euoneu ayy ¢
juswnaop jo-asoding z
uononponu) |

qyOMIOo4

uojoeg

$IUBIUOY)




Page 25

900z Aew
aANOAXT JaIuD
AauqoH yypnr

‘sjesodoid N0 UO sjuBIWLOD JNOA BuIAIBID1 O} PIEMIO} 3CO] 3N

‘PJEMIO) SAOW O} Sh salldsul Jew auo st juawdojaasp
pue ymos6 jo abew Jey | “woojq finyu1 siamol Jo ate sabews Jaje) pue
‘mous au ybnaiy; Buysnd 19010 §0 S1 18A0D Juoy By} uo dbews ay)

"lejop alow uj sueyd 1no dojeaap am se smaia
1noA Jo Juncooe Bye} LBy} UED ap) “SHEL 0}.8ABY NOA SJUSILLOD Jeym
Jeay 0) pue ‘seap| asay aleys 0} Juem am a1oum abe)s sy} je mou ale
9/ "SAI0BY3 pue S|qeuleIsns ‘9|gISSS00. SI0W SBOIAISS N0 a)ew 0}
Stom am Lem ay) aBueyo o) sjesodoid asau UO PAdIOM BABY OM SN |

“Jagaq op pnod am sBuiy} a1e 213y} Jey} JGNOP Ou UL SN SIAES)|
SIOBUOO [BNPIAIPUI JO ‘SLUNIOY JOSN ‘SJUIEIIOD BIA YOBGPOS) JOASMOH
"sabueyo aagisod axew o} Age 4no o} sayyse} Kuenbas uoyesiuebio
4no 0} uj ssWoo jely sieuped pue SI1ssed pue SISSN WOy ¥oeqposd
"SAI9SINO Jonpuod am Aem sy} jnoge sBulyy pooB Auew ase asey|

"ua)epepun Buiaq S| UOHEJNSUOD Siyy Aym
S Jey} pue ‘MOLIOLIO} Papasu aq [|Im JeYM JOPISUOD 0} OS|e Ing ‘Aepo}
Papaau st jeym apiaosd o} Ayliqisucdsal ano jo ped st “sisuped Jao
pue gejs ‘s1afeo ‘siosn Yim 193800} HIOM OM PUE ‘JUSWUOLAUS JRIDOS
pue [eapjod Buibueyo Jans ue ul siy; op apn “UebBip pue uoiButlep
‘susieH 15 “Aejsmou) ‘uojieH Jo ajdoad auyy 0} seowlas pale pue
Ueay feyusw sapiaoid Agusuind isruy SHN diysieuped sybnolog g

‘sjuswaje
9S8} |{e UIeU0d JUBWINOOp SIY) Ul In0 39S siesodold ay) Buiuesw
OU aAeBY SS300NS pue ‘JuslidASIYoe ‘Jusussroidll SE SPIOM Yons
‘ssalboid pue ymoiB [ENURUOD JNOYIM, JeYy) PIES OUM UIpjUeLy SEM })

SBIPOEG i BB



Page 26

"SB0IAI9S BINJJS »

pue ‘paseq uosud ale jey) SsOIAISS JINpE e

uaIpiyo e

BHUSWASP se yons sassaujjl ouebio yum ajdoad 1opjo o
SPB3U SSNSIW SOUBISNS PUE |OYODe LM S)NPE o
sajiqesip Buiwes) yum synpe o

. “10} 9S0Y} SE yons
SBOIAISS JSiH{EI0BdS JaU)0 INOge Y|} JOU S0P JUBLINJOP S|

‘uotssaidap
oluew pue ejualydoziyss se yons ssssau|) jejusu Buunpus
pue snouss pue ‘Ajsixue pue uoissaidap se yons SUoHPUOD
eay [ejusw uowiwod aney oym odoad apnjpu; assiy)
‘a|dwexs Jo4 "S80IISS Yjleay [ejusul weaysulew Aq jsw
Ajlensn sue jey) spaau yjeay [ejusw aAey oym (uasjybio
Jano pabe) sjinpe uo aq Ajuo [jim JUBWINOOP SIL} JO SN0 aY |

"JuswNOOp SIY} Ui paulino siesodoud ay;
Aq pajoaye Jou Sa01IBS JBLRO SBYNUSP! PUB SIYY SSIRASH
mofaq ydesb ay| jop am jeu)) a1ow Joj e si a1y} —1abpnq 210}
ino §0-1suenb auo INOQe 0} Junowe Asyy Jey) palaquiawial
aq pinoys 1 Inq ‘op am jeym jo ded juepodwy Kiea e ale
juswnoop siy} ul Jnoge Bupjie] ate am ey} sadiAIes By

SI3A0D JUBLINDOP SIUY JBUM

"suefd 1no buipiebas smarA anok 31no puyy
0} Juem utebe am ‘siesodosd o pauiejdxa aey om asuQ

€1

J Op 0} Juem am Aym

{le 8A0Qe pue ‘)i Op O} Juem am moy

1 Op O} JUBM DM UayMm

}1 Op O} JUBM BM aJayMm

Op O} JUEM OM JEYM

‘noA o] uledxa [IM}] "YEIS PUE SIaLed ‘SI8sh SIS 0} Buudlsy
JO Ynsat e se Op O} JUEM 3M JEUM SUIINO {iM JUSLLNOOP SIY}

® o0 8

juawnsop siy) Jnoqy

‘wayy yum aaube
pue SJUSWILLIOD 8SaY} 0} Paud)si] aAey apA ‘op 0} pakojda
atam Asy) sise) ay) op o} wayy ajqeus o} dn pasy sq o}
$82iN0Sa1 pue 3uty pue ‘sajol ssy) spoddns yeyy Buluien o}
ssaooe juem Aay} ‘sqofl say} op way; digy pue wspoiu ase
ey} SJUSLLUOJIAUS U) YI0M O} Juem A3y} Sn pjo} ABY Sloquiaw
yels -areo sey) Suipiebal suoisiosp jle ut paAjoaul Ay oq
pue way} 0] suaddey Jeym JaA0 [0JJUOD BIOW SABY O} JUBM
Aay] "ss800E pUE pUBJSISpUN 0} ASED 818 JBy} ‘SaLWIoY JidY) 0}
{e20] ‘saolntes Ayjenb ybiy sa1a0ai oy Juem Aauj sn pjo} aaey
SIBJeD Jialy} PUB SISSN 30IAISS JNSAI B S “ISNU Y} JO} M4om
OUM 8SOY}. puB JSNI| BY} WOY SAJIAIBS 918031 oym sjdoad
84} Ujoq 0} PauUB}SI| dABY aM Z0(0Z Ul PAJEDID SJOM BM S0UIS

nok o} Buiuajsiy

'saAleuesaidal sy pue sdnoib gejs ‘siased
JI9Y} 'SJaSN S0JAISS JNO YJM SUOISSNOSIP SWI0S Udeuapun
Apeaue aney ap\ "seolas Yyeay [ejuaw ynpe Aenb ybiy
apinosd am moy Buiroiduwil Jo Aem 3saq au st 9AsIRq ‘'S1Dd
ps1daye sy} pue Jsni| diusisuped SHN subnosog G ayj ‘om
1y} UOISIA PauUIqUIoD 8y} sjuesald Juawnoop siyl usaib
us3q 9ABY 8M Jey] S20IN0Sal dy} UIM UBD am Jey) Sadlales
yieay jejuaw jseq sy apinoid pue (4oj Aed) uoissiuwon o}
Aem 1saq ay) Amuapi o} senbeayjos (1 9d) 1sni} asen Aewid
N0 yum Buppiom usaq aaey om sieak omy Jsed oy 104

"uebip pue uojbuiuep ‘suejaH IS Aa|smou ‘UoljeH jo
a|doad ay) jo spoau By} J9aW Ja)laq O} *apIACId BM SBIINIBS
ay) Bumosdwn Aq ssbuayjieyo asayy jo pesye Aejs o} ueid
Isnuf SHN diysisuped sybnosog G au) je ap i pasu Asyy
I3ym pue usym ‘i pasu oym sjdoad ayy o} ‘papaau si leym
apiaoid o) sjqe aq o sabueyo ssay) yum dn dasy 0} spasu
‘SB0IAIS |[e 8)I| ‘SHN aU ] ‘pHom Buibueyo-19A3 ue ul aAl| 9p

UoIONPOIIL]

A

b




"AINua0 1s1.Z 8L JO spasu ay) Joj 3y - ssopuas Ayenb
panoidwi yBnoay paseasoul Aealb aq jim Juswsaaul ey
Jo anfeA aly se Jauaq liim ‘uogexe) BIA SN puny oym ‘oignd
[e10uab ay} 10 §) Dd Butuoissiuwoo 1no Asy) 8qG ‘SISpuUNy o

"} 9SBAI03P JOU ‘siauped IO ypm op
M YIom ayj aseasnul Ajuo |im siesodosd asey | “Bujuued
ledueuy pue syysuaq ‘uonesnps ‘Buisnoy ‘juswikojdws
8pnjou; o} aAeY Jjm ydium saal| sjoym s,aidoad Bupueyus
pue Buuancoal Jnoge st i “uoRIpUCd sywads Aue Buneay
0} papuw| Jou si A19a00as JO MBIA INQO "BAIBS OS[e Aay)
UOIYM Ul S3IPIEDO| BY) U WYY YIM JBSOID USAS HI0M 0}
SS0IAIBS INC SNO0JAI 0} Juem am se sjesodoid Jno woy
}yduaq M siayo pue sapusbe Kiejunjoa ‘sjusuedsp
Buisnoy ‘saojnias [e1oos ‘sj Od se yons ‘saiousbe joupied »

‘ssagoid
uonisuey; ay; Jnoybnoiy pasu Aay poddns pue Buies
3y} anisoal m Aoy pue ssodind Joy 34 ase yey sBuipiing
ur spsom fim A3y ) “ypm suom Aay ajdoad asouy; jo seniiqe
ueund sy Buiuejuiew, ApIsw Jo MIIA B uey) Joyel
Jonaq jeb, sidoad jeyy maia ay sjouwsosd yeyy [SUETHTT AN E)
anusod Ul JHOM O} PojeUS 8q [IM SISGUISW YelS e

"ajqissod se ajeosaluy Jsloys
e ul auolians 1o} A1aA0oal Jo [Bpow au sjowioid Uojym
10 Jle sjuswuonAua ajeudoidde pue a|gIssaooE BIOW Ui
Papiroid 8Q 1M S30IAISS "SOAI JIBY) - 18A0 SSXE) LBy} Jaujel
- OJui S}y Jeyy Aem e uy pajean pue pabeuew Japaq 8q o)
SUORIPUGD J1BYl 3jqeua o} way} yjm Buppiom aie oym yejs
PaiIBiS wWoly ‘S3VAISS PASEq PAJUIPIAS ‘SALDSYS BI0W
an1B03l [im ABY) SB JYBUAQ [IIM SIBIED PUE SIOSN 9DIAIAG o

8pNjoul YoIyM pausaoucd Apoghians
J0} spauaq aney jiim Bunpom jo Aem mau au easieq o

- 18poW M3 3y} JO SjyeuUag

‘pajonysuco sbuipjing mau ‘pasnnbas y1 pue ‘sapedosd
Bugsixe ay} 0} sjuaLLYsIqINya) jeRuelsqNS Jo XiW e aq 1w
alayyIsru) oy ssouoy /00g Jawiuns Aq pajajdwoo pue 900z
Jo uwnne ay ul sebueys asay) SxEW O} SBYS | J0) 8G pINOM
uoldo pauajasd 1no sybnolog inoy Bulurewas ayjio4 ‘Abojens
BujuoissiuLoD mau e uo Bupyom ale jsny | a1e) Aewind
uebip pue ybiay ‘uojysy esneosq sl sy} “ybnoiog uebipp
S SpNJou JOU SSOP JUSLUNOOP SILY JOASMOH “JSTLE] D[OUM B}
ssoloe psjuawiejdun aq [im axew o} uejd am sabueyo ay

Q SDPLE

"AIaA023s Jauyy Jo
Sued eioyausq pue juepodil JSOU auj JO 3UO St SIL MO
aM 9SNEJaq SOAI| [EULIOU JIdY} 0] WINjal ued Aay os ajqissod
Se Joys se Aejs Jiay) aeuw 0} A5y osje m 3p U pasu Asy)
se Buoj se 4oy areo Ajjenb jo sjaas) ybiy ABuisesour spinosd
O} 9NURUOD [|IIM 3M SPadU JdY} Joau 0} [eudsoy 0} papiupe
©q 0} p3au Op oym 3souy 04 “sBulpunouns awioy Jejwe; ul
Yljeay o} oeq A1aA00al Jiay) SNUKUOD ‘PINOYS pue ‘pinod Aay
passed sey uojssiwpe Jisy} Jo Hed Buissagsip ysow Apea
8yj Jaye uayQ -assy) shejs Buoj Ajlssa|pasu arey jepdsoy
O} pagiwpe 8q o) pssu op oym aidoad Auews ‘Apepung

‘Juawesy siyl opiroad Jagjaq pinoo ‘sanuad AleAodal
[BO0] Ul JO ‘SSWIOY UMO SISSN 9OIAISS U} Ul Yels pajpis
‘Juswjeas juepodwi pasu op Aay) ing ,peq, B ainbas juop
{endsoy o} papiwpe Aguound ale oym aidoad Auepy ‘sanuao
80In0sal [0} UiYUM 10 BWOY Je Jayye pasu Ay} dioy sy
anigoal ||im ojdoad asow pue alowr se jepdsoy o) papiwpe
Buteq sydoad jamay aq |im 210U fjm noA abBueyo jsabbig ayy

29s Jybuu noA sabueyo ey

. .mﬁmmma,m. S1 11 59U0 ABS1EAS BUILOISSILILICS MU BU)
0 puodsa fjim jsnd H.mz.z a_nmba«_ma sybnoiog g aut

. eore seu) Ul papiAoid 8g Jim Asy) Aoy pue :
. papsall ale sa0iAIBS eym BUIDIEBaL SUOISSNISID 1auun)
. 01 elgns aq (iim1eu; ABs)els BUICISSILLICS Mau B
- buuedaid Agusiing s1e | Dd uebip pue YbieT uojusyY

JUBIBLP Sl € S UEBipy pue UBIeT ‘Uolisy

*S8OIAIBS WEeaNSuje
Jo ped uiewas Aay) aINsus {IMm am ‘UOHIPUOD DjUEBIO 180
Swos Jo ejuswep Se Uons ‘spasu jSiE0ads Jayo sey
[enpiAlpul ue ssajun "a8des - suosiad Jop|o, - Jayoue o}
aAow pinoys pue ajdoad juauayip swooaq A3y} Gg Jo g ale
pue Aepuing e aaey ojdoad asneoaq jsnf jey} sasieq jou
Op am ‘alojalsy] 'Spaau pue Ayjenpiaipu Jisy) 1o} joadsal
UM saolakes Ino Buisseooe uosiad fians jeay; o) ueld ap

14

l




Page 28

ysIsiuy swud findag ay jo
wewpedeq ey; Aq paysiqnd
“$00Z sunp ‘Loday uoisnjouf
|EID0S PUB YyeaH jejuep,

L

‘auoAue abejueApesIp 10 8pnjoXa Jou S0P 1ey)
JauuewWw aAIsNpU Ue Ul saoiA1es apiacid o} Apjiqisuodses
pappe ue aAey sadiAes (B alojasayy “sisoubelp yjeay
lejusws & O} payoene ewbis e sujewsl asmy ey
as1ubooas 0} sedINRS YYeaY [EjUBW puokeq S$a0IAISS jB
Joj paau ay; syybiybiy osge podas sy "uonejndod sy jo
lie Joj saojnas sjeudoidde Ajjleanind apiaoid Jsh aoiAses
Aisns pue pajelsio} aq 1abuoj ou ueo siy jeyl Jesp )
sa)ew podas ,,UOISNOXT [eI00S PUE LijesH [elusi, 8yl
'SSOIAISS Yljeay [ejuaw yum Joejuod ojul Buiuos usym
pabejueapesip usaq ueyo aney (JNg) sdnosg suylg
Auouy pue xoelg woyy ajdoad yey) mouy app *sisoubeip
Jo uoibijas ‘snjejs owoucsa 4apualb ‘ebe siey) se yons
sanss jo ssajpiefios way) pssu oym ajdoad asoy; Jo e
0} s|gejieAe 8q PINOYS SIOIAIBS (I ‘UOISNIIXT {BID0S e

‘Aemyjed Juswijeas Jiay} jo jujod £19AS Je Se0i0yo S Jasn
80iAIas asealoul 0] swie japow pasodold JnQ "eoinas
ay) Buuaayep uosiad auy Jo sepuab ay; pue papinoid si
S0IAI9S Y} 2IBUM JUSLULIONAUS AU} ‘ISYO UO SjuswWiess
jo sadfy auyy ‘sjeudosdde Ajesjulo areum ‘apnpur o)
saw waunutodde puoAaq papuaixe Bujaq si so10yo sy
SOOJAJBS Y)eay {Bjuslu Uf WSY) JOJ JUSIUSAUOCD S| jey)
aoeld e pue awy e je sjeuoissajoid yum spusuguiodde
‘soueApe Ul %o0q 0} siesn aoes 10§ Aunpoddo ayy
sapinoid ABojouyos) SHN mau auy ygim pajdnoo aaequ
~A00g pue asooy), ayj "} Anq am asaym pue § Anq sm
uaum 'Ang O} Jeym JO S8OjoYD PaYLLIUN JSOWIE SABY oM
aJaym pHoM B Ul BAl| [[B BN "SSOIAISS [le Joy anssi Biq e
8Wooaq sey aol0y) “pjood pue asooys, pue ‘adioyn e

"pasn aq ¢} si SHN aui Jo Butpuny ul sseasour Jueoyubis
8y} moy sjejap ‘souepinbd pue sjuswnoop Buipoddns
Auew sy pue ‘uswnoop SIL "000Z ‘UBld SHN Ui e

"$80IM8S Y)eay [ejuaul jie AQ paasiyoe
8Qq jsnw jey sprepuels Ayenb Buiysiiqelse ‘uuoal 1oy
awweiboid seak usy e paysiqelse JSN YL ‘6661 {4SN)
UlesH jejuspy 1oj poMaleld 9dJAIag |RUCHEN SY) @

'ybnouy useq aney sjuaweosdun asayy Jo sueqd uiew ayy
sannenu Auew ayy jsBuoly "saoinies yyesy |ejusw anoidw
011YBnos eARY SJUSWILIBAOY) SNOIABIM BY) pUB JUBLIND aygiyjog

MBIA SJUBLILIBAOL) B4 )

-
o
i
@
-
=

S jeuoneu 9y ¢

“JaAljop
0} ueid am yeym Buipuny Joj ajqisuodsal ase oym ajdoad ayy
‘SIBUOISSIWLLOD [820] JnO Jo Buiyoeq |jny ayy aaey sueid anQ

‘sued Jno UO SMBIA JNCA
Jeay 0} syl {ins pInom am sabueyo asay} aousuadxs o) sease
1SJY 8Y3 JO BUO LI 'SBOIAISS BAI2021 JO ‘BAl JOU OP NOA JI UBAT

“uodn panoiduul aq Ued Aayy moy mouy 0} axi| pinom
am 3seD a8 Jou si sIy) J ‘wayy toy Aed jey spuny aiqnd ayy
Joj Asuows 10} anfen Buipiaosd Jsjiym SSOIAISS INO SS9I5E OYM
a|doad ay} Jo spasu ay) 195w 0} pLeMIo} Aem 1saq oy} ale
Aoy} aAsiieq apn “sueld 1no Jo yuiyl NOA Jeym mou 03 JUEM 3L

"sabueyo pasodoid ay} Suprefias smeia snok
1o} yse pue sedisaes Jnpe Buisiuebioal Joy sueyd Ino supno
usuyl s 3t s Buimoljo4 “seonies yiesy jesw souanyul
Apuaund jey} senss| |BSO] pue JEUOHEU BY) SUIRNO OSJE [IM }]

“Jowl Spasu asoy}
OABY [{iM SPaaU ijeay [ejus yim s)npe moy o} sebueyo
Buipsebal op o} Buiuueld ase am jeym o puy o} Apuniioddo
syl ymm ‘oiignd [eseuab aup ‘noA sapiacid juswinoop S|

IUBUMOOD Byl Jo ssoding 7



Page 29

€l

SWOS Ul Palayo s8ojAles JuelyoAsd ajnoe Jo ADUs)SISuod
pue Auenb su Jnoqe SWSOUOD PaYRUAPE BABY S$BJEOOADE
18y} pue siesn 80IAIBS AQ USHEHLISPUN SMBIASI JUS0aY

's19Jeo pue siasn yym bulobuo
S UOJIB)|NSUCD 8y} 8INSUD OS|E JBY} SWINIOJ JSNI| JO JSGUINU
B 9q 0} SaNUJLOD 8J8Y| 'SBJIAISS JNO SSN OYM 3Soy} jO
SMIIA a0} Butuajsi| pesyuoud am UoNEaId SIS} N0 WOl

SM3IA 18S() 3DIAL0G

Spaq B[ewa} yg Yum uepLays
SPaq SjEW ZZ UM usisny

ISMOJ|0} SE Spiem oM} usemiaq Jds spaq
9y sey (uojbuluepy Bumias) uoyBulLepy HEd SUILIOH

spaq 0z yum abpug
SPaq Z UM JOABSAN

:SMOY|0}
Se SpJem oM} JoA0 jiids speq O sey (uoyeH Guwuss)
[eNdsoH [eseuss) UOHRH 12 POSEq ‘Wupn i8Mooig Y| e

(susjeH 1) spaq sjew g1 yum G|
(susjoH 1S) spaq alewa) 91 Yum )
(Asysmouy) spaq sfewa) g1 yum z1

(Asismou) spaq afew 2| yum |t

SMOJ|0}
Se SpJem Jnoj pue spaq /9 sey (SUs|oH }S pue Aajsmouy|
Buiies) |edsoH UOISIUM Te paseq ‘yup Alpisug KL e

‘Je pajenyis ale s}Npe 10} saijioe} Jusgedul JuaLno INQ

3piacad ARuaLInD aMm Jeyps

"AJUNUWILLIOD BjOYM BY} IO}
uiieay [eyusw sy Burosdw Ut susie syijesy jo Juswpedeq
ay; yum sui w A0y s1 aJed Jo [apow mau pesodoid InQO

‘Hop am
Moy OS[e I1q Op 8M JeUM Yjoq aroidui) 0} pajeals aq o} pasu
Saljjioe) MU pue papasu ale Buppom jJo Ss[@pow mau jeu
MBIA SuBLILIBACY A} yiim sa1Be sjesodoud g “(Asjsmouy
ur yun Asipsays sy jo eny Ajjeroadsa sy syl pesiwapow
8q 0] pasu pue UOHIPUOD 3|geYNS U} Jabuoj ou ale s e}
jualedul Jueun2 JNo JO aWoS jey; jdsooe am ‘Algeyaibay

ve

44

YifesH Jo uswyedaqg

P002 LUQ SIBBA SN ~
YIEIH [BJUSH JOJ JIOMIWRI
82InI8g [BLONEN 8YL, »

.'8/doad passansip Jo aseo ay) 0} pajns
jou aue Jey) esn uj spiem Jusned-ut ale aisy] ‘ssefoyusreN

%Qﬁwﬁ‘ﬁwm o ai b ‘oAljejUasaIdBIUN PUE POIEPINO S SPIEM YYRely [ejua pienbs
N ] Jo abew; sgindod sy} pue ‘paysiqunsal SOUC JepIo pue Jing
%uw 8y} pue (IHWIN) uaBq sy SpuN Judijed-Ul MaU ‘S}SnU yiesy [ejuaw Auew uj,
PuE(BU3 Ut yyes [elusH Jof . )

SISy JeuoneN . pusibuz ‘ples saded uQ SIBBA 3AI, 34} ‘Spiem Juaned-ul Jo Joadsal )
uy spiem ogreiyohsd

1npe jo Aanins jeuoyeu “JelS JO ajeIow pue UoHUS)aS ‘JUSUINIDA PaAGIdW) e
V 5002 28D QUOY.,

pue ‘yejs Guowe s|pjs onnadessyl pardidw o
si8yjo pue gejs ‘sjuaged jo fiajes parcidu o

S30IAISS B0 [B100S
pue yjesy |eusul Aunwwod yum uonesbaul paaocidwi o

juswiesq
Isieinads pue UOISSIWIPE SISUS ‘uonEIqRYSs ‘9led ajnoe
10} siuelsAs IOPSQ IPNOUl PINOYS S[OPOW M3U 9S8y
"SBOIAISS 3SOL} 9SN OLM SSOL] JO SPUBLLISP By} J93UW 1a)9q
0} ‘sa21AI8s Jualjed-ul Buipnioul ‘SBoIAISS JO S|OpOW MAU. o

-Joj paau e si a1ay) paje)s podal ay) sjdwexa 104
‘paiinbal Sem 3I0M 3I0W IBYM SBIIR 2I9M 338U} 1Ry} Paje)S
os|e )l ssajayuaAsN "uoisiroid Ujeay [ejusu Jo seale Auew
ut spew ssaib01d sy} Bupsebar Aes o} sBuiyy aanisod 4o 10
€ pey uonenjeAa siy) ‘Sa01A18s yieay [epusw Buiaosdu
Ul sseuaajoaye sieak sy Jsiy SISN 9Yl JO uopenjeAs
ue paysignd yjeeH jo wswpedsq 8yl $00Z Ul ‘OSlY

‘Apadoid Bunilom Jusi WajsAs JusuIND 8y} jey) SSjERSUOWIBP
Auesp  ‘gejs paseq Ajununuod pue plem  Ussmiaq
UOHEDIUNILIOD 100d SEm SISY) pUB pIEM Y} UO BjqejieAr
Siusunesy) ognadesay) psjwy oM asely 1ey) sbuspuy oy
yum pajdnoo siy) “piem sad sem tad yels awi-jny  uey;
aJ0W O} pajunowWe siy| ‘spiem Juanedu; uo yejs Aousbe io
)ueq Jo 8sn pue S3jOUBJBA JB]S JO S|aAa) YD1y alom ooy jeuy
punoj a1ed JleiyoAsd aynoe Jo ajes ay) uo wtoaﬁ e $002 Ut

sBuipuy yoieasay

“{apow pasodard ano papnjour Buppom Jo shkem
MBU UJIm Ul Ji§ 0 pue 301040 sjowoxd oy siybng uetni ay
Unm Aidwod ‘v €861 au3 uiim sspinBique ayy Buonpas Aq
SDIAIES Yjjeay [ejusll SSIUIBPOW O} %4838 {IM sjusLupuse
asay) jey; pajedionue sty ‘papusiue aq [m 1oy €86 Bugsixa
By} JOASMOH "ainjny Jesu au} Ul 1oV YHESH [EJUS Mau B
8Q Jou [IM BiBy) JBU} MOUY MOU aM ‘MmET LjieaH [RIUsi e

4

€



Page 30

“|lom Buppom pue
S0ejd Ul MOU St YolUM ‘@imionys juawabeuew o payiduns
M M3IABE SUOISSILILIOY d1BD YNeaH 3y} 0} asuodsal uj
"MaIAB! (DOH) UOISSIUWOYD 218D esH aARISod B paniaoal
am 00z JaqUaAoN U )oog pue asooy) pue abueys) 1oy
epuaby ‘sawy Guprem o} Buiejes sjebie} sjuswiulanog) ay)
40 e jow aney spn 'siayio Bulubisepal pue sadinies o
Asuow mau Bunseaul Aq sybinolog 4no jo jsow ui sjebie)
(dan) ueld Alengeq [eoo Aoy 8yl Jow Osje aAeY SpA

‘uopesuoyne ajeudosdde ayy 03 18{qns 8OOz W
Isni| uonepuno4 SHN Ue awoo3aq [iIM am jey) os aAoidwi o)
SNURUOD 0} JUBM A 'ISNU IBJS-Z B JO SNIE)S aY] Sh papieme
aaey Yyles jo Juswipedaq ay) yey juiod 8y} 0 S8IAISS INO
panoiduyl Apusisisuos aney am ‘siaupied ano upm Buiom Ag

soueulioplad Isnyy ¢

Q w. ABEIEE N

"sanss} ay} buissauppe ui djoy Aguesyubis gim
ale3 Jo jopows pasodoid no jey; pue Ajsnouss A1sA SWSoUOD
9S8Y] 9)E] oM Jey) SIJE[SUOWSP JUBWINOOP SIY) 2ABII8G 9N

“pomieded Je|pusyy pue Jojdwis o

pue ‘ssaled Joj poddns Bunosdus e

saunyoddo

uojeonps pue Juawdhoidwas o} ssaooe  Bunordwy
sBuipjing Buiaoidu

SBOIAISS yl|eay jejual 0} ssaooe Bunoidun

SAOIAIS Y}jeay [2JusLl INOge UORBLLIojU J3)1aq

jnoqe pue jno Buipeb

Apuapuadapui sl 0} djoy

ssauj)i jejuaw jo ewbas ayl ypm Bujesp ul poddns

@ 8 ¢ ¢ 0 ¢ 9

1SMOJ|0} S Juswanodiul 1o} suolsabbns
peIayo 8spIaXe UOHBJNSUOD  [BJ0] SAJEIOSSY  Byj

‘papold aled
8y} Jo abps sy} Jo pesjsul ‘Ueay ay} 18 S301N0Sa) APUNWILIOD
saoejd jey; |spouwr AIoAcOa) B 0} [9pOW jEOIULD DY) WOy
Keme anoui 0] paau jeas B passaldxa Aoy} JOABMOH siseq
uwue}-6uo) e uo way) o} papinoid Buiag saoialas Ayuniuwod
ay} pejewaidde Ajereusb sivIED pue SIBSN 8JIAIRS

S90IAI8S AJUNLILIOD YIm syulj Jood ypm
sjuswsbueue abieyosip pue uoissiwpe a|geNNS JO XOB|

S0UIJOIA JO S]BAIY) JO [BNjOE JO S[RAd| Yy o

4ElS Wwnooj pue
Kousbe o asn anissaoxa 0} Buipesj yejs Jo Aousjsisucou)
o sbepoys 0} snp suojusAIR)Ul Sinadesay) ou 10 apy|

. sBuipjing pue juswuonaua 10od &

:sewsyy BuImoljo} U3 Ajjuapt SJUSPIOUI PIEMOJUN SNOLSS
ojul spodes souewaAOD [EOUID LUOY SUOHEPUSWILLCIAL
pue sjueidwoo Josn 30IBS JO SISAleue ue  ‘Os[y

asodind
Joj ssauly s,Buipying ay pauoysanb pue yun Asipieys sy
UIyllm palaAlfop a1am sadinias Aem sy Buipiebal suiaouod
uglsIsucd punoj - p00z Aepw (susjaH 1S) uoneynsuo)
181e] pue sesn jo sbulpuld, - sajeroossy ayj Aq asioiaxa
uoje}NSuoD Juspuadepul ue afdwexa Jo4 Jsni) ay} Jo sped

Edis

U0

)]
-,
W\



Page 31

Ll

Janamol “awAep sy Bulnp aq jiim.siy} Ajlens() "sawoy umo
JI9Y) UM JO BUBD B Je JOYNS 1S 3] JIt\M SPasu Jiay)
a1doad jsow JO4 ‘SPasU INOA JO JSOW 9B [iM PUB S0IADE
NOA BAIB (jim ey} sanued 8dIAISS [BDO], BY) aJe SIRUSD
S0nosay pue AisAcosy AisAcDas JISU} SpIE SIy) Se SaAl
Jay} uum uo 186 o} waey siqeua o} ajqissod se swily e poys
Se 10} peos sy} yo, aq o} juem Ainybu sidoad “repwis ale

_S30IAISS Yieay [ejusw Jo spaau pue suonepadxs sajdoad

‘MOU “3'| - Sh SHNS jey)
Sy B 12 )i Xij 0} UOIIEIS BOIAIBS [E00] B JUBM DM ‘PaXy aq. 0}
Kioyoe} 3y 0} 06 0} aney 0] 1ed By} juem Jou Op IpA “sjgissod
Se Hoys Se aq 0} dul Siy} Juem alojaialy apn ‘Bunensnyy oA
8q ueD SiU} ‘awi HOYS & J0j peos sy} Yo aq O} aARY S18.IN0
sswijawos -apispeos ay} je Ajqessjesd ~ ajqissod se uoos
SEB paxy way} juem am op Aay) §i ‘UMOP 3ealq O} SIEd Jno
JUBM JOU Op aM SISALP JeD BJe am Ji ‘ajdwiexa Jo “18)se} pue
Jayeq ‘alow poadxe apn Ajlecnewelp pabueyo aAey Seolnles
Jo suonejosdxa Jno S3pEOaP Jusoas IO ‘Ajeseusd ey uj

£S81UdY 824n0S3Y pue L19A008Y ale JeyMm

‘mojaq sabejs ayy ayy Bunawos apnjou Aew
Aswnof [eoidA) e ‘Aem awes ayy uj aw jey; je uosiad jeyy jo
spasu- ay uodn juspuadap st sseooe ke SaoMas Jyoads
yoiym pue Asuinol ayy jo abeys yoea Jo swy Jo yibusy ay)

yuswijeasy ybnoayy Asuanol sy

Ty

91 SBIVBE 0

"201ns9s Buppiom Juiof sse|ueas e moys o} pauniq
Ajoresaquap ase sjuiod Janossolo ayy suibaq Jayoue pue spus
B0IAI3S BUO BseUM sjulod ale asay} yBnoylje Jey) 8jou [im NOA

‘poddns ased paieys aieo Asewud pue
Isijeroads juiol eia A1onooal finy o) Buwingas 810J9q S80INIBS
yesy |ejuswu jsieioads pasinbai i pue aled Liewud sesseaoe
uayy uossad siyy ‘moyok Aq pajussaidal s Ayunwios syy
uim Bulall yileay iy Ul [enpiaipul Uy ‘mojaq sweibelp
oy} u pejussaides st Aauwmnof siy) ‘Aseaooar yny pue
Hoddns aieo fewud o} Buuingel sl0)eq ared isiyenads
ajow pasnbai y pue ases Lewud ybnosyy 'yyesy woy
Buirow axe; sienpiaipul jJeyy Astunof e se jusiujean 8as app

"MIA SIY} 9jowo.d O} Jejs pue SeoIAeS
Jno (fe Juem am pue |spol A19A0031 8U} S| SIY| “SSAI} JIoY)
yum uo Job pue ssaujy Jiay) sbeuew Jayeq o} way) ajgeus
UeD ey} a1ed Jsjaq spiraid UeD JNSal B SB PUB SUORIPUOD
s,3|doad Jnoge 210w Joj B MOLB} MOU SN "SBAY) jryBuiueau pue
P3{jyjn)-aAeY 0} UO- 3NLYUOD UED SSau (ejuaw Buunpue pue
snouas e pajieo st Jeym aaey Aeus oym ajdoad asoyy uang

‘@SB 3Y} 8q SIy} pinoys
1abuoj ou pINoys siu} 18Y) 9A3IBG SN JRIOM B JOU - 90UBJUBS
e si sisoubeip yjeay jejuaw e, Bujjes) S[ENPIAIPU; SWOS UM
ssaooid siy1 u padjay Jou aney sa0lAeS awos jsed ayp ul
JanamoH "ajep Jaje| B1e SBAI| [ELLIOU JI8Y) O} UiNa] umopyealq
yiesy jejual Jo pupy awos sjususdxs oym ajdoad jsopy

Zuaseyip Aue yjieay [ejuaw JSpISUCD am PINoys
AUm AIsnoinaud se SaI| [BULIOU JIBY} UM SNURUOD LD Aoy
uonipucd Jiay} jo Juswefeuew Jadoid pue suopnesaid may
e yum Inq ‘sejaqelp se yons ‘Guoj ofl oq Aewr suoypuoo
ypeay [eoisAyd siey) sidoad Jayjo o4 swisjqold Jayun; ou
10 SR Yum ojif snoiaaid Jiay) 0] uinjal pue JI8A00al, ‘sl
3y} jo Jsow ‘sjdoad Jsow ng Juswieal Jo jof e pasu Aew
Ay} pue awmn oye) Aew j| JoAcdal O} Jay o wiy 1oadxs
am Ajlensn ssaujjl Ue 10 JUSPIDJE UB SEY SUOBLOS UM

édopop Aisaoday, suy s1jeum

jopow mau sy

e



Page 32

6L

"Sa0INBS
Japiosip Buges se yons ‘seoinles asauy apiroid o} ajge 1paq
Aoy} ajegsuowap ueo Aay 1 sejos asayy J0 BaWos uo aye;} o}
sJspiacid sayjo Buibeinoous ale SIBUOISSILWLIOD Ajbuiseasout
Jsni| SHN diysiauped sybnolog g ay) Aq papioid aq m
N0 pue saJy] Jsl) Je SOIAISS ||B JOU ey} Pajou aq os|e
PInoys 3 saiuy Jai) 1e (sBumss fendsoy uum ueyy seyes)
S82lAas paseq Aljeoo] 810w Jo uoisiaoid pasealoul ayy pue
oM} J31Je asea Alepuooss pue Arewud usamiaq soepaul ay)
9| ‘ancadusl o} juiem am Jey Juswsncidw Joy Seale ugeiy
OM} B4} SMOUS Os|e 3 "saoluas Bulsixa pue [9potu mau ay)
Ojul 3y sioR asay) moy smoys abied 1xau auy uo weBeip ay)

*SSVINIBS BljuSLIaP Isieoads pue
S8oiMIas Jopuosip Buges asanss ‘sSoISS UOHEOYIXOIOP
's80inas disusioy Bugpnjour ‘senyioey Jusnedul jsienads
8Joww pauinbai Aay} Jeu) yons ale Spasu SSOYM S, IBNPIAIPUI
850U} 10} ale SAVIAJSS BSBY | “24E) ISHEI0adS ~ 1N04 JOL) @

‘uoissaidsp ojuew pue ejuaiydoziyos
9l sassauyl [ejusy pue s19plosip Ajjeuosiad ‘siaplosip
Bupes ‘Aaxue ‘uoissaidap se yons suoypuoo ym ajdoad
10} °q pjnom seolAles asay AjjeoidAy ‘seoiues |eoo)
Weafsulew Uiulm Woy wayj jeaq o} ajge aq 0} wayj jnoge
ybnoua mouy am nq snouss sse spasu asoym ajdoad
9SO} Joj aie sedlnIes asay | ‘Jusnedul Ue Se sy a4udd
34 uigEm J18quinu Jajfews e Joj Jo ‘sBumas Ayunwwoo uy
‘saloy 4ayy v sjdosd poddns |im 1ey; SajUBY 83IN0STY
pue fienooey peseq Ajeoo| woy papiroid aq im ared
Aiepuooces spppow meu oy uj ‘suelNSUCa |esipaw
paseq [ejidsoy Aq pa) seoinas paseg-lepdsoy useq sey
o) sy Ajjeuompesy ‘aleg Asepucosg ~ oauy) RETEANY

‘spaau
INOA J38LW O} BOIAISS 1S8q BY} S YOIUM pUBLULLOTD] pue
Speau InoA ssesse (M aolAles S| "eled Arepuooas
Isieads pue aleo fiewnd usemiaq aoeusiul ay} si
Sli] "edinieg Jusuissassy pue BUISSIOG — oML 1911

Ul AJiunwwon Jo Aiebins
S.d9 JNoA U Ualo JawW sk SpPsaU aled [BINOS PUe yiesy
INOA JO Jsow aseyYM I SIY) “BaeD Aeuing ~ suQ 1] o

2L SEPPBE s

"SMOJ|O} SB WialsAs asedyliealy [eo0] ay} ojul
S1y pue yoeaudde paion sy uo sping 3onpogu; 03 Buisodosd
8le 9M jey} [3pow mau ay| "apinoud Isnu] e se am jeym Jsnf
jou — aJed Jo wd)sAS 3joyMm, By} o Jayes asay poddns jo
S8} noge et ajdoad puesy saey Aew noA ABuisessou)

yoddns jo sialy

‘paiinbal se spasu InoA o} puodsals
0] S|qejieA. oq [|iM SWEa| JusUeal] SWOH Pue LoiN|osay
SISUQ S.8RUa 20IN0S3Y pue AISA0D9Y B} uojusye
Sjeipaww asow axnbas pue sisuo e Bupusuedxs ase noA j

1seq
SSOUEBJSWNOID INOA pue NOA SINS Jey) SUOALUOS 39S O} SINoY
8102 3y} uiym awy pue Aep e 00q 0} B|qe |jiM NOA ‘uolusye
Sjeipaliwl pasu pue SISLO € JO SPI 3y} Ul 818 ROA SSajun

"(ss21143s 1no 1oy Aed oym sjdoed ayp) SIBUOISSIWLCD
INO Yim suoissnosip layuny annbai jim am siyj op ueo am
810484 Jnq Sspuaysam pue sBulusAa apnpul o} papusixs aq 0}
SIN0Y 8100 8s3Y]) )} pINOM Bp “Aepuiy0} Aepuopy widg -weg
40 sunoy 2109 8y} Buunp poddns anisoal im sidoad Jsow
‘1onamoH ueak ey} jo Aep fiaas Aep e sunoy Inoj-Ajuamy
uoddns apioid [m sanusd ayy ) annbas oym asoy; Joo

‘way yess ‘sjeuoissajord pojejas jeyjo snouea pue sisidelayy
leuogednoso ‘siaxom ejoos ‘sisiBojoydAsd ‘sasinu 'si0j00p
Buipnjour “yers jeuoissajord Jaylo pue SHN Inq ‘sieudsoy
Jou ase Asy| ‘sediales JIay) o8l [Im ejdoad jsow alpum
Wwioy seseq sy} ale safue) 80IN0say pue AIsA0o3y ‘Uoys uj

"poddns jsijejoads aiow axnbas oym sjenpiaipu) asoy} jo
Spasu ayj Josu 0} 8|qe Jajaq aie Jey) SIS Y} WLl Aeme Jjels
Jsyeads-asow jo abues sjoym e Aq dn paxpeq aze ‘sjdwexa
obeieb sy exy ‘sanus) soinosey pue Aiancosy eyl

"SSRNP MaU JiBYy) [Yiny o} Wyl 3jqeus o} Bujuiex jeuoppe
uanib aqg osje |m yejs ‘) asnbas oym ssoy) 104 Hpom Kauy
MOy pue xlom Aayy asaym eq Jim saoualagip Ajuo ay) ‘yels
awes ay} Aoexo oq |Im Asy) SsoUB]SUI ISOW U *MOU SN 10}
Hom Ajuaiino oym asoy) se suoesyenb pue SIS Jo SIBA3|
swes ay} 1sea) 18 yum seakojdwa SHN aq im Yels ay)

"way} annbas oym asoy; Joj spaq jo Jequinu
[BWS  aq [IIm 2184} BI8UM BJUSD 90IN0SY pue AIoAcIaY
3L} UIYJIM 1O S3LIOY UMO JIBL} Ul Jaylia papiaoid aq pinod siy)
uiefe ‘woddns oo ay) punose axnbai Aew a|doad swos

dalueys

P

4



Page 33

aq ‘esnsin
aouejsqng
ainoeg
sIaplosip
Bune3
21SUSI04
Sa0IAIBG
uened-u

 Jopiosip aAissaidap-oluety

74

B S

pue ‘uoissaidap snoyoAsd
‘eluasydoziyos ‘sisoyohsd
‘62 ssauyji jeyusw
9J9ADS 10} SAOINIDS Lfj|eoH

sieplosip Ayjeuosiad

pue Bunes ‘A1aixue
‘uoissaidap ‘69 swisjqoid
HIN UOWWOD SNOWAS

uswebeuew ssaooy .«

8010y «

Bunsodubig «
juswissasse

pasipiepue)s padx3g .

$S9008E

Isijeoads

10§-S90IAIBS Y)eaH

Jo wiod 9)6uIg

e

Z 13t} 10} Buuesiog .
ssau)j)
|eJudy snoudg

10} s]000}04d poalby .
Japiosip Ayjeuosiad
‘Ajo1xue ‘uoissaldap
‘60 swajgosd HW
UOWIWOD 1O} SBOIASS

8.9 |B100S B Y)BoH .

sAemyjed ooiates mau InQp

0Z

EDFIOEY

24 sBUBLY

R



124

"SJUBILOIIAUS paseq AJUNWILIOO 10 SWOY Ul 34 M oM Jiaig
10 fuofew jseA ay) Ing seseq ey se SORUAY 80INOSSY pue
K1an002yf oM} asn jm yerg “ejqissod se yonw se Apunwiod
84} uj aq pinoys ,uoieao), s aAaleq Ajbuogs am sjeuoissajosd
ased Aiepuodas Jsieoads Aq paye)s somies e s1 siy} ybnouy

JOUOOS Spaau LBy jeal} o} ssauj
§0 2posida Jsu, e Bupusyadxa aq o} Jesdde oym adoad pue
sjdoad sabunoX jobie) AiBuiseasou; jm soialeg uonuaniay
Aure3 uno auojassy) “ssaup [ejusw B yum Suisels aq Aew
oym ajdoad o} uonee) uj any Ajjeroadsae S sy} Ausnooal
iiny & Jo sedueyo vy} Jepaq oy ‘Hoddns eajg08) SsaSIp
[ejusw aousuadxa oym ejdoad Jouoos ayy jey; MOUY apM

20IA19G uonusAsRU| Ajte]

‘wea) ayy ulyum Buniom
Jouolpeld uosier aoysNP fEUIULD B SABY M anuan
SAIAPY pue $s820y yoes jey) pesodoud si i puk sjuswissosse
onpuod m  sjeuoissajoid areo yyesy jo ebues vy

"SARERIUL 400G PUE 8S00YD), SY) Uj PaQUISSP SE
«SOIAIBG JUSLISSBSSY [OIUID, B JO SPIEPUESS SIUBLILISACS
SU} Uim aul)| ul 3G pnom 31 uaNeHspun S| JUBLUSSISSE ue
J9ASUSUM 'saljus]) 30IN0SayY pue AIsAcosy Byl UIURM
P00 9q (M Swes] adIApY pue sseooy ay) ‘sdnoib pue
satpusbe ajeudosdde Jsyio o} Buysodubis 10 aseo |eioos ‘aieo
Isiierads ‘sanuay e0IN0say pue Aloacoay 8yl o} 1eyue
Jeu} aq — ssacoud |eusjes ay; ebeuew m pue seynbus
PUE sjeLIsjal (|e 8e) |IM SWes] 8say] "SWes| SIIADY pue
SSS30Y aY) BIA aq |im S89IAISS JNo O jle 1oy Aemajeb, ay )

SWeay adIAPY pue $$890Yy

"8huaQ auy uiypm woy papiaoid eq osje m poddns siy;
se ‘sawjuiodde jusgedino paseq |epdsoy (e Joj pasu ay)
SJRUILLID [IIMSIY | 'S8AJUSD) 80IN0SBY PUB AISACODY LILJIM LIOY
0 SSUIOY UMO Ji8U) UILIM JSU}IS 1w Spasu a1ed y)fesy jejusiu
Isiferoads 118y} eA19al (iwm ojdoad jsow siqissod Jonalayp

"(uo os pue ‘sdnoib uoyessas Bupjolus 'ss0)
Wbiem ‘sejeqerp ““a1) sdnoib ysu Jayby 10} sxoayo yyeay
leoisAyd pajebie) se jom se sapuabe s)ybu aseyam pue
Buiure; yuawAodwe ‘Buisnoy spnjous sausbe Jayjo asayy
40 sajdwex3 "s1asn )1 40} 3.1jUB0 UOREWLIOJU pue aolApe UB Bg
liM S8JUST 321N0saY pue Alancosy By} Jey) puajul osie spy

vy

44

"SI91eD 118Y) pue SI9SN 82IAISS AU JO AL} JUBILBAUOD
Isow sy yins jseq o} sawy Je jos sjuswyuiodde pajnpayos
-34d BIA 8Q [JIM SOIAISS SIYj} 0} SSS00Y ‘Adesayy jeuonednoso
pue jegs [eoipaw ‘ssomias ABojoyohsd ‘ saidesay) Bupye),
Buipnpu; susugeay jo sbues e spinoid m swes)
9S3Y] ‘swiea] jusuRAL]JUBIUSSISSY  padueyug (g

"HUA 8} O} UOISSILIPE JIBLY JOYE PUE BI0Jaq SISSN SOIIBS
Uum om0} pabeinoous aq [ yels pue Jejjews yonu
8q Jiim Jun 8y} Inq spaq asay} poddns [jim yejs Buisinu
‘MOU S} 1l se Isn[* "spag Alaaoa9y pue poddng anoy (Z

"sBues Apunwiwon seyjo uiyum pue
SSWOY UMO JIBY] Uf SJBJed pue s1asn aoiues of poddns
spiAcid |im pue 85USD By UIYUM PESE] Sq [IM SWea)
8Say] "swiea) juawiesy) SwWoH/uOnNiosey SisuY (|

‘suojjouny feajulfo
8100 83} JOAIBP PINOM B1JUSD) S0NOSIY pue AIBACOaY BY |

suooung ayy,

"anuad
3y} Jo suoouny JusluabeuBL U} JOAISP M Bj0s SIY)
UONBIA LISPO o

"80IA9S JUBISSASSY / judueal )
paoueyu3 ayj Aq paioaljep si jJuswieay pue juawssasse
SMeys ainsue o] diysispea| JBYO M [0S SKYL

1s160j0yoAsd JuBHNSUOD @

"Butuueld ased pue juswgeay o} diysiapea| [eoipawi
Jojo jim sjo1 siy; ‘jsuieiyoAsd apeib yers e yum Jayiabo)
ISUJBIYOASH JuBlNSUO)D o

“ebeyosip pue suoissiwpe sjeudosdde
ainsua 0} yejs [edipawl yym Ajesop Buppiom ‘eoiatss ayy
ubnoyy smoy Jusned sjeudoidde sy ainsUS M 9j0s S|

Jabeuepy wes| uogniossy SISUD e

}JO Jsisuoo
[iim Wea) ayy $ss0INS S,34U82 By} aINsus o} ssodind Joj Jy
wes} diysiepes| e ysiyqejse o} pasodoid S| J| PUB SS9JINSs
sepow ayy o} Aey ayy si diysiepes) eagoage Buunsug

diystepeay

i

BINJONNS SIUSY 32Jn0S3Y pue A1sacday b

.

4

¥

4

4



Page 35

Ra2 2

¥R

T4

"siseq juauwiuiodde ue uo a1u30 By} LIYIM JO
swioy umo Jiayy ui Jayya sjdoad Buipoddns uodn paoeid aq
liM 81UBD 33IN0SAY pue AIBACITY M3U INO Jo siseydwe ay)
J19ASMOH ‘Hoddnsuanedus uiay-poys eanbai oym s{enpiApul
0} Spaq € dABY {IM 3] "anua) Jaxyooig paysiqinjal auy uj
P3seq aq |m anua) 30IN0Say pue fUBA0DSY Suo)eH

uoyeH &%

eale [290] INOA Ul JOO[ 1M SO3IAIES MOH

ve

"ssones Ajjenb Ajataw
— uopped Aue @8s jouued way} asn oym aidoad Jey; Juiod
AU} 0) "SSOJWERS, 8q O} SIS INO JUBM OM SE ‘paun|g
Ajeleseqiap st Buipeys SiUp 1BU} 10U JIM NOA "SBOISS 9180
Aiepuooss ‘anjqg ay) ‘um aoepelu sp pue aeo Kewyd
sjuasaidal apeys usaib sy} apis puey Yo} ay) uo uieby ease
4noA u1 op 0} ueld am JBYM JNOGE UOREULIOJUL 810U NOA SOND
pue  uonoss Ul pajiejap [3powl Yy} Uo Sp|ing mojaq Heyo ay |

B3le oA Ui op o) uejd am jeym

"30JAISS U} SAIR08 OYM 9SO JO SBOI0YD pue Spaau sy}
Sjoau 1saq Jey) uoISIACId paseq-AjUNWILWIOD uo $) Siseydwa
8U} 8J3YMm 3UO St AVIAIIS SIY} JO asnjeu AIsA ay) uleBy “spasu
Ylieay [ejusw sABY AliESD INQ SDIAIOS LYIM YIOM O} Juejon sl
ale uosea! JaAsjeyMm 10} oym sidoad Jo Jequinu fjews ey
yum iom jim Aey) -sbumies Apunwiuod uiyum paseq ag
lim Asyy pue swesj poddng pue Aieacosy Aunwwon
3Yl Yum AjoSO HIOM flm SWes] YoealnQ SAIHessY 8y

{LOV) suwiea} yoranQ anpessy

"aouspuadaput Jejealb pue uoisnjoui |e10s ‘K1sAc08)
40} Aunpoddo eyy Buiiqeus ‘passaippe e spasu pue oy
SJosn aojAas ay) Jo spadse |8 sansud ey} sHomswely
juswsbeuew aseo jsngos e YBnosyy apnoid Asyp sseo ay)
8JBUIPIO-00 |IM JBIS |HIND 8|qe ale Asy} se uoos se Aja100s
pue s8diAles Wealsulel 0} wnis) 0} spaau uuej-Jabuoj
UM ajdoad sajqeus Jey) aoias e apiaold [m SEHND Byt

"padojanap Jauuny aq [im (SLHIND)
sweal YeaH [ejusiy Ayunwiwo) Jo UoROUN} JueLnd ay|

{LHWO) swiesy yyeay [ejusy) Ajunuuog
‘sidoad g5ty Ajerewixosdde jo peojases jejop

BuioBuo ue eaey pue teak Jad ajdoad mau gy Ajejewixoidde
doddns o} soMuBS UORUBAIBIUl ApET By} Jo) wie s




Page 36

iz

Jepow
S8A SBA SOA mauay) (¢
spun sayio
S9A ON oN ascjo pue
asjenuad (g

Buyiou og (1

"MOjoq HeYD ay] Uj UMOYS SI
uoyoejes Joj suoseal ay) ypm Buoje suondo ay} Jo Alewwns y

"wuey Buol siy) ut ajgepioye
Si pue yoseasal sonoeid Jsaq Aq paxoeq st i ‘Juem sidoad
1B00| MO BM Jeym Ypm yjoq aui| us s1 uondo siy | “Buisodosd
Bie oM jey) SJeD JO [8poWw MBU ay) s uondo payl 8y}

"Aunwwod J1vy} Ul peseq
pue |00} ase SBOINISS 3Sq Ay} ‘Bl 8y} Jo Jsow ‘aidoad
1SOLW 1o} Jeyl SN S|19] Jeu 4oIeasas JO 10| B St 219y} pue Juem
aidoad [e00} Jeym Jou S| SIYL MOUY am asheosq uondo sy
pajoalas apA “auniny ayy i jgspiojul Bulob sn dojs pinom siy
pue 0} pasu am jel) ASUow Ay} BAeS O} 3|qe 9q PINOM M
siuy Bujop Ag *suogedso] Jomaj Ul WSL) SSHRJUSO PUB SHUN
luapedul JusLIND JNO JO SLWOS 9SO O} SEM UoRdO PUCas By |

‘1gap Oju} 2J0W pue alow of pjnom am
SE SBIAISS JO 10| B 5SO[0 0} 8ABY PINOM SM B JOA0 ‘Bujop
8le 5M Se U0 palLied am Ji 0S]y Jeleq 1o e aq pinod Aay; Jng
Poob a1e SeojAI9S IN0 MOUY aM asnenaq payoafal sem uondo
SIY L "MOU aue am se anuguos pue Buiyjou op o} sem jsuy ay
"suogdo sjqeruom sauy} Ao YIM 18] elom am pus sy} u)

1ebpng Jno
ultm 3 03 *a) ‘wiisy Buo) sy ul eiqeuseysns Ajjeoueuy og (g

‘PUE ‘plom ay} Jo
1531 84} pue Y1 8y} Ul Y10 9d1j0eId 158G BUY UM BUI| Ul 3 (Z

ajdoad (00| Jo spesu paynuapl ay} Jeepy (1

Jsnwi jepolu
3o1Mas mau Aue jey; alem suopdo osay} ssasse o) pasn am
BLISJUO 3Y | "3Injny 8} Ul S80IAL8S N0 apiaoid O} Jsaq Moy Jo
suondo Juaayp JO JaqUINU € Je pa)oo| aAey ‘siouped oleo
[B100S pue yjeay Jno yym Buoje ‘om sieak omy jsed ay) Jen

pasepisuos am suondo Jeyin ¢

9z AERIYREY i

*siseq juauguiodde ue uo a:UB0 BYJ UIYIM 10 SUWIOY UMO
Jdisy- ui Jayys ajdoad Buoddns uodn peoeid aq | anus)
90in0say pue AIBA008Y MBU INo Jo siseydws ay} JOASMOH
“poddns jusijedul uual-uoys a1nbas oym SienpIAPUI Io) SPaq
TS BARY {IM }] “a)IS e SulljoH 8y} uo sBuiping paysiqinjes
ul psseq aq [|ImM 8HUSD 30IN0SaY pue A19A008Y S,uojBuLep

[HATSHTHETYY

'siseq yuswijuiodde ue Uo aUSD S} UIYIM JO SLIOY UMO
Jleyy ui Jaypie ajdoad Buruoddns uodn paoerd aq jwm anus)
20unosay pue A19A008Y MaU IO JO SISBYJWS Ay} JOASMOH
“Hoddns juagiedu wus) Hoys axnbal Oym SIENPIAIPUL IO} SPaq ZE
aney (M3} “aps UnoD ssauQ A8jSEad POPUSIXS PUB paysIqInal
AU} u paseq aq (M 84USD 30IN0SIY pue AISACOdY SUSISH IS

SUIRH IS

‘siseq juswyuiodde
Ue U0 3[UID SY} UIYIM JO SWoY umo Jiay) uj sayys aidoad
Buploddns uodn paoejd aq ima1uaD B2INOSEY pue AIsACSY
Mau 1no Jo siseydwis ay} JaAsmo “Hoddns juanedur wisy
-Hoys aunbas oym sienpiapul 10) Speq £g aARY M I “Hupn
AsIp1ayg 8y} woy papiroid aq O} 3NURUOD jIm S3OIAIBS B
Apess ale sasiwald mau syl [UN BWIHUESW By} U] PSP
Aajsmouy] ay; Ui pajoniIsuco aq o} Bulpjing mau e ul paseq
aq 0} pauueld s1 a)jua) 20IN0S3Y pue A1BA00BY S Ao|SMou

Aaismoung

4

}

]

3

k

b

4

A 4

¥




Page 37

s @OURUT

ise'sosoz| e oL
000°00b°L | S1s00 AB4-UON JaUIO pue sBruq pajeuws3
_lsg'sop'el] 0 o 120l
¥r0'LEV'S h uojbuLepn
€22090's Kojsmouyy
v.6'69Y'S susieH 1S
Lo'sre’e uojjeH

:8q 0} Jseoalo} aIe s}1502 Buuunt amyny ay

‘Jobpng jejo; sysmu)

34} JO %0€ PUNOIE O] JUNOWE (M SISOD UO Y} YPIM UDIuMm
4eaf Jod uolur |23 1s00 (jim Buppom 0 |[apow mau ayy

¢IS03 31 1M Yonw mof

$92IJN0g awosuj JBYIO
Buluojssiuiwo) eandes [

SLOd 4834yi0 |
19d uojbupuepm [
10d susppH IS [ |
19d Ke|smouy ]
d UojjeH

10d uebip 3
uojysv

10

ybia

87 SSPPELG «h o olusyy

"apinosd am s301AI8S By} 4O Ajljlenb
oy} Buinosduul se jjom se — uwus) Buoj ayy ul sjgeuteisns aq
Osie {lim pue souejeq 130100 sy o Bupuny ay; Buug M
IapoL mau 8y} “jqap 1easb oju) ob jm am sy} sy uo Aued
M J| "sane081 )} Asuow au uey) Jeybly st SsoIBS yeay
[EJuSW ynpe sjsruj ay} uo Buipuads jo jeAs) Jusuno sy

ISOAUI S1Dd 8y} Asuow ayy 10j anjea
apmoid Asy) pue ease ay} Jo spaau ay o} sjeudordde aje
siesodosd Ino ey paysnes aie $) g oY) Ssajun sabueyo
9S8y} ajeuw JOUUBD M Padpu} "aAoQe S1Dd By} Jo yoes
ulyum sisuped Bujuoissiuwioo 1o Jo jeaoidde aiy yaas osje
litm 8m sjesodoid ino 1o jeaoidde inoA Buiueb o} uomppe uj

. ‘UOIIN S63
SI £-9002 40} awoou [ej0} 8Y] '| Od Yyoea o} sjeuoipodord
oy s3Wod Bulpuny Ino [je alaym SMOYS Mmoeq Leyd ey

‘uojbuLueps
pue susisH is ‘As|smouy ‘uoleH ‘uebia 3 ybieT ‘Uosy
'81.0d 800} Ay B4} WOl SBWOD SAROAI oM Buipuny aug Jo
%98 ‘1SNl SHN diysiauped sybnolog g ay 404 "seoinies
4no (1o} Aed) UOISSILIWOD oYM S| Dd WO SSWED SAIF03)
am Jey; Asuow sy ‘sisnul Japiaoid yyesy fejusu jje oy

Jiepow mau ay3 Joy Aed jm oyps 9




SRR

%5 0
3N°QI"UORRHNSUOSNIGNASYBNCIOGE MMM

Je 8)Is qam no oas aseeyd

‘vogeusous apep oy dn Jo4

¥n'oo uone} Ewtouu.kn:&mcm: QIOGS MMM

IS4 iy} o) pappe aq
—— Je passadoe 8Q UED UO|SISA 3jqepeojumop

"ajqissod se jeuuiojul se aq jjim sBuissyy ‘suonssnb InoA
Jamsue 0} Juasaid aq OS|e [IIM SSIIAISS UIBSH [BIJUS INPY
10} s|qisuodsal aie oym jsru) ay) woy sisbeuepy Jolueg
‘seibolens ylieaH [eluep Aq pajen|ioe; aq |w sbupsew |y

& 1o ‘(anoqe spejap) soujo saibojens yesy feuspy auy
woyy paiddns aq ues Juswnoop siy Jo saidoo jeuoippy

6001 S8Z 1940
Buixey ¢

“(48)ef uanib aq Aews Jamsue

UojreH wnipeis wd| 90'80'2C BY} OS S|iejap J0BJUCD 8AB8| O} dABY ABW NOA JUSLUWOD &
Aosmouy] aung Aqupy Buiaes) uey) Jeyzes uogsanb e Bupise aze nok y1) pioyels
wooy Aaidsg wdg  90'80°2) auukl Jo 9jeay Mapuy 0} ¥se pue LOOL S8/ LILO
uojbuuem anuad Aemojes wdL  90'80'80 Buoydayoy e
Susfop 3S SAD wdz  90°80°€0 "X0q 109igns au} ul sybnosog g, spiom ay} Jnd ases|q
;wﬁkgpw._‘owm_:mwm%m_w Wiz o0g0e n'09°uone)NsucoogndsyBnoloqSBUOREYNSUCO
Buyew-3 o
UOJfel SSUPIM wnipels wdo  90°20'8)
uoyburuep siaquieyn 980 0
lIBUNOY e umo) wdg  90°20'11 Jeyseyouepy
sa[003
0 SU3j3H }S$ SAD wegL  90°20°90 19948 uaqy
(qp) Aaysmoury Aepp oIAD 9SNOH uosIBW ‘10014 Y6
® aung ualiny je lsjes Wepp  g90'90°0g salbajens yiesH [euspy
o) SUBIAH J$ § WOOH fleH umoL wdg  90'00°LZ uoBglnsUeg AUand s.yBnoiog g syl
@®© uojfel anuan Bunup e
o Ayunwiuod spiayepsed weoL  90'90°9} e soiBereng
uobuLLBp B1ua) Aemaies weLL 90’90’60 YlieaH fejusy 0} suopsenb pue SJUSWIWLOD pUBS UBD hOA
anusp  awi) Melg ajeq

+Uo p|ay aq juim
sBunasw 21qnd ‘ease nok uy sebueyd 8y} ssnasip o}

1oquisldeg uy Bussw e je pieog jsnuj pue
Wea| aAN0axX] sjsn) sy} Aq passpisuod ag jIM SJUSLILLOD

"saifejens esH [ejusp Wwoy ajqeieAe aq jim saidos piey
pue sjisgam yn-09'uone}NSUOINGRdsybnoloqs-mmm
ay} uo paysygnd oq [IM PaBAIRDAI  SJUSWIWOD |y

'900€ ¥snbny yipZ ays jun
900Z 8uUNf JS|. WO UM Jpm UoRE}NSUO0D Jlgnd fewwoy oy |

‘uo passed Hujaq aweu NoA Jnoypm
SN 0} PAPIEMIO} 3] UBD SJUSWILLIOD INOA ‘3S00UD 0S NOA Ji
‘ley} painsse aq pue way) o0} Xeads UED NOA ‘SJUSWIWOD
Inok amsgas o} Aoueynsuod aseoyyesy juspusdopul ue
salfalens yileeH [eJusiy PajiAul 8ABY oM JUSWUNOOP S}
Inoge Ajsay eads o} e|ge aie nok Jey; ainsus of ‘waY)
Ayuspt Aew jey) uogsanb e Bupise Jo maiA & Buissaidxe noge
snoalau aq osle Aew ojdooad swos suoseas jo abues e 104

Uiyl noA 1eym jeay o} juem am ul aJe noA uopisod
JOABUDIYAA “suolsanb aiow se 0] Juem NOA pue uoReuLIoj
ybinoua aAey Jou Aew ) SIS0 JO} ‘Ul B%E} 0} YoNUs 00} aAeY Aew
) sjdoad BWOS 104 "UOIEULIOJU} JO SJO| SUIBIUOD JUSLLINIOP SIY|

¢ixau susddey jeypy g fuiyi noA op jeypy 4




Page 39

£e

L€ abed uo pajiejap sluaAs uoneyNsuCD J1qny
8y} jo Aue 1B SjusWwoDd INOA PLugns ued nok Aleaeusayy
'9002 1snbny Wiy uo wdg Aq (og obed uo syielep 1oejUD)
solfielens ujesH [ejuely OF SJUSIWIWOO wWnje) ases|y

" * Aes o} ayy) pinom pue SIS peay fejus Jinpe 30 uojisiaaid ay} o) sabueys
pasodo.d aup BuipieBal uanoop  Jjoneg ay | Joy abuey), aig peas saey |

(pauinbai se sjpays [euomppe asn asea)y)

199Ys yoeqpas.y

810l (28}6p B8SBE|S

N/D
ey

e




Page 40

usipany
i%.?ﬁabivioﬁﬁ%nﬁwﬁwiﬁ%wﬁtt
£rpvsv? <fio oy gD iy 1 o G’y pLOBYY STL0 =2 <F 0FF9 Covmvns O pgap e

D o Krif i ) ¥R vy (R 1 S5Pvimd's (P R - cosvims FEREeCim by

ssoumD
YR RN - HES UG
CRRNBHYEE  BITUERL WS Y MFEE cvI0v0052610
BED ' SHSHMRBTHELE  ERENEHDHHXPEN R

ewesg
‘SQUIEP JBW C3EM 00S A NNU| Ueen(e) eeucop ueebey nny nuiexeps Jsaf xappes EBeeNu00joIsE
o/l epeepebn; eoebews Baays “v.0v39 $261.0 9em ‘Aewnliey ooy stex pebni voped; oysay peew
pAeyey ueeids! pee ewe ‘uebuBLWMIOP UESQEES MY OO CjER} Be UAOCIER, NS Xem ASyepes; pee nppet

wgelung

LSRR JEER] 2 RUNKEDE (30 ORR VIO E URINR
£ £.0F it IDRY PRIPR PR P 2 HAY HE BB O} K 2 BE R I2E YR € FOPOISTELO 2
48 'Q 2 JRUDE £BJ [N 1 3y P 4 ' 2o @2 2bd) 4 A 3R Lubit Rk BRENA MY JHE B

1PUIH

Uy {plsstio jr Julie Y Jr Ub 4 plit BE [ahlie %M HERR Ln 13 kb5 16 ShikRe
£ 13 DiYlp 4 dake LLGINR lohiz Jie DR M L bik 1o buiieBlis jphie JhE Dhiells 2§ h ek $L0VOS SE6L0
E,pﬁm@rmsgéF%BE;«EEE&%EE%EFERE@W

e

R R PRR By Tey) R UGS B B 18 (P INR 88 R Lk 29 BBRJR PR ke
B 1nm ghR RIkR th 30 pLOPESELOL0 BE NN 1P B 1Wkih IDBRY NLPR PPARTRT R W

efueg
1 2B b0IRID) BIRIIO (bl LR (22t R SIRIGRD Modty LAKUD [BMIQ | LEND
Qkie BINUAD FUS R kbR BIPLGY dikil: BISIA Hidali § kb LMD KRl T #L0FI9 SZELO
19 2l AIEEE HILO B Ut b Ll R0 "2k BOK 2 5B 1212) Slsle Atolaln X1 Wb Blbtatic

duqery

$L0¥99 5Z810° (57 s e i P aars e O e g el e
691D P 9y | 030 et o e oy e 40 2 s g ¥ e by

npin .
AR AP P EAR 550 Y=y Py ARy D7
W7 0N h\?dﬁ.\..isn.»v@@&a%é.\Nm.wmwm.\atﬁov&mﬁav%w._.m

ystibuz
“40Bq nok (182 0} Ja8idianu sucydaa) & 10} SBUBLE Y 3 BN
auoydaja) Jnak yum say3ebo; ‘salun 62y s6enbuel INok Jo surey aY) 31.)S L0990 SZ610 §B2 'abenbire|
ANOA OJu) pAjRISURY ¥ BABY O} SIM NOA JO USWNI0P SIYE INOGE SIULILLCS JO suogsend Aue 3aey noA §)

g

3

J

L1

~




Page 41 AepenDINZ F

5 Boroughs Partnership

NHS Trust

sponses to

for the
oint Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

e: ‘Change for the Better’

A Consultation on proposals for
elivering a New Model of Care for
Adults and Older People with
Functional Mental Health Problems

St Helens

Warrington



Page 42

G



Page 43

5 Boroughs Partnership NHS

NHS Trust

Issues for Consideration by the Statutory Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Re: Improving Services for Adults with Mental Health Needs

5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust

1. Introduction to Response:

The Trust thanks the borough Overview and Scrutiny Committees for convening a
Joint Committee and for the opportunity to provide more information and responses

to queries in respect of the ‘Change for the Better' consultation on the proposals for
a new model of care.

We must be mindful that the model relates only to adults of working age and older
people with functional mental health problems, though review of other elements of
the Trust's services in relation to the latest Commissioning Strategies for Children
and Older People will need to be undertaken in the future.

The Trust would also wish to remind Committee members that the proposals provide
a model framework for service delivery, the details for implementation of which
require to be developed with partner agencies in each of the boroughs. The
proposals provide a consistent and cohesive network for the provision of effective
and non-post-code discriminated services for the benefit of service users.

The impetus and direction of the proposed changes has been stimulated and led by
comments that service users and their families have been making to the Trust
through various forums since 2004. This feedback and consultation has been
obtained through both informal and formal mechanisms and it must be recognised
that some of the issues raised present real challenges to professional groups and to
current ways of working.

Similarly, the development and subsequent approval of the Comprehensive Mental
Health and Social Care Commissioning Strategy for Adults of Working Age for
Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington provided the basis for the development
of the model and referred to the evidence of effective service delivery. The Model
was developed alongside the commissioning project group work and the first draft
was presented to the Strategic Commissioning Programme Board, comprising of
PCT Chief Executives and Directors of Social Care, at its meeting on 10" February
2006.

The presentation to be given today is specifically related to the queries received from
the Committee via Mr Mike Wyatt dated 26" July 2006 and the slides follow the
format of that paper, of which we are assuming that you will have received prior
copy.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

— 10f18

i



Page 44

Whilst aware that the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny committee is to
scrutinise and comment upon the proposals with regard to the adequacy of
consultation and whether the proposals would not be in the interests of the health
service in the three boroughs, the Trust has sought to provide wider information in
this response. The presentation is thus quite lengthy and there are supplementary
items of information that are provided for the benefit of reference by committee
members. However, shpuld there be need for any further reference material, please
advise.

2. Impact on Service Users and Carers

Q. 2.1. i) The reports referred to would seem to indicate a tightening of eligibility
criteria across mental health services.

The proposals contained in ‘Change for the Better respond to the content of the
Comprehensive Mental Health and Social Care Commissioning Strategy for
Adults in Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and Warrington. (See also separate
paper relating the Commissioning intent with the proposed model).

People are currently accessing beds when they do not need to, A recent audit
showed that between 15 and 40% of people admitted to an in-patient bed, do
not need to be there (Point Prevalence Audit July 2008).

We are aware of differences in Eligibility Criteria in different Local Authorities for
services and also for the health provision of Community Mental Health Teams
(CMHTSs) in some boroughs. Service eligibility criteria within the proposed
model are to be subject to joint work with health commissioners and Local
Authorities in respect of in-patient admission and the Effective Care Co-

ordination policy respectively. This work to be undertaken post-consultation on
the outline model.

The proposed model is about ensuring service users receive the most
appropriate level of services in the least restrictive environment and to ensure
that those most in need of services get access to them.

In some of our localities service users would be best served by specialist
mental health community services. Currently not all service users are able to
access these services for a number of reasons, for example service not
currently funded or service provided for working aged adults only.

Q.2.1.ii) This is likely to be as a result of the decrease in in-patient beds.

The reduction in in-patient beds reflects National Policy and best practice of
providing treatment and care in the least restrictive manner. The provision of
effective ‘front-end’ access services and effective alternatives to admission will
result in the current criteria for admission to acute care to be properly applied.
This has not been possible due the community infrastructure not being fully
complete and cohesively integrated. The Commissioning Strategy notes that
the ‘amount of in-patient provision required more often depends on, and is a
function of, the range of other services available locally’.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
20f18

2

3



Page 45

The Commissioning Strategy also notes the relative over-supply of beds in the
boroughs.

The Royal College of Psychiatrists has provided advice and recommendations
for the numbers of beds required per head of population, and the lower level is
that which is appropriate when the community services are developed and in
place fo provide appropriate alternatives.

The approach taken by the model is also being championed in the recently
published 10 NHS High Impact Changes for Mental Health Service. (Ref:
Number 1 of the 10 Key High Impact Changes”)

It will always be the case that some service users will require a stay in hospital
(sometimes compulsorily) however all efforts should be made to ensure that
alternatives to in-patient hospital care are not more appropriate.

The Commissioning Strategy also advises of the need to have and apply clear
and robust specifications for eligibility criteria to operate at all levels of service.
(Ref. Page 15, Para 11 of Commissioning Strategy) in addition the Strategy
describes the criteria for use of Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit beds as distinct
from acute care beds (Ref. Page 46).

In support of this the NHS has invested significantly in community-based
services since the introduction of the Mental Health NSF. Many of the
community-based services are already in place for example Crisis Resolution
and Home Treatment, Assertive Outreach, Early Intervention in Psychosis.

Community Mental Health Teams have been in place for a number of years.

‘Change for the Better’ will ensure all localities have community services in

place which meet the best practice standard (i.e. Policy Implementation Guide
Compliant)

Q. 2.1. iii). The model is not clear about the impact that this will have for service
users and carers in the Boroughs.

For many service users there is currently no alternative to a hospital admission,
resulting in a period away from the families, friends and work, which may have
been avoidable. Patient surveys (locally and nationally) indicate that some
patients find psychiatric hospitals threatening and unsafe environments with
poor staffing levels and thus poor levels of service user staff interaction. This
model will reduce the need for admission and, for many people, actually shorten
the amount of time that they will remain as an in-patient. The increased staffing

levels will help improve the time available for staff to engage in therapeutic
interactions.

' Care Services Improvement Partnership, 10 High Impact Changes for Mental Health, 20" June
2006. An Executive Summary is also available.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
30f18



Page 46

The new model proposes the full development and establishment of crisis
teams in all boroughs who will work with service users and carers in an
alternative environment to an in-patient setting, this may be the person’s own
home or at another location.

For carers, the main theme has been about how to negotiate their way through
the various health and social care systems. The introduction of Access and
Advice services (referred to as Single Points of Access (SPAs) in the
Commissioning Strategy, page 63) should improve this. These services provide
expertise in assessment, gate-keeping and ‘sign-posting’. Proposals to
establish a Resource and Recovery Centres (ref. Page 15, section3, para. 12 of
Commissioning Strategy) have been welcomed by service users, carers and
staff alike.

Some carers and service users have expressed dissatisfaction with the location
of Hollins Park for services and have asked that consideration be given to
locating the Warrington RRC in the centre of the Town.

Q. 2.1 iv). The model is also unclear about any arrangements to ensure the
safety and effective risk management of issues relating to individuals through
the transition of services.

The delivery of safe services is a key priority for the Trust now and will continue
to be so in the future. We will continue to develop joint protocols for admission
and discharge and develop care pathways with our partner organisations.

As with any of the services provided by the Trust, the risks of service delivery
are assessed as part of the Trust's Risk Assurance Framework and through its
risk management systems. All of which have been subject to external scrutiny
and audit and evaluated as providing significant assurance.

Additionally, partners and service users will be involved in the detailed planning
and implementation of services. The Trust will continue its acknowledged high
level of general involvement of its services users in its activities.

The assessment of risks for an individual service user will continue to be
undertaken within the clinical process of Effective Care Co-ordination.

Q.2.2. There are concerns about the possible impact on other aspects of 5
Boroughs work, notably the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services,
where there is no clarity in the proposals outlined.

‘Change for the Better’ is about services for adults and older people who have
functional mental health problems and was developed at a time when there was
no agreed or cohesive CAMHS Commissioning Strategy. The proposals
neither enhance nor detract from the provision of CAMHS services.
Arrangements from transition of individuals from CAMHS to Adult services will
continue as now. -

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
4 0of 18

4

(RN



Page 47

Gommissioners across the four boroughs of Halton, Knowsley, St Helens and
Warrington have very recently developed a CAMHS strategy. The recently
appointed Director of CAMHS and Psychological Therapy Services will be
meeting with each of the Local Authority Directors with responsibility for
Children’s Services to develop a response to the commissioning strategy.
Notwithstanding this, the issues that face CAMHS service continue to be
progressed.

Q. 2.3. The Committee is concerned that the proposals do not properly meet
the needs of a number of specific groups including:-

i) Older people with functional mental health needs

Many of the services not previously accessible to older people will be
accessible to them in the new model e.g. Crisis Resolution and Home
Treatment, and psychological therapies via enhanced day therapy
provision. We have reviewed the various policy guidance documents
and have not found anything that contradicts our position in respect of
providing appropriate care and environments for people who are
vulnerable of whatever age. We take the issue of caring for vulnerable
people very seriously.

ii) People with dual diagnosis i.e. drug and/or alcohol and mental health
problems.

The presentations have all clearly stated that the services will be
accessible, as they are now, to people with a dual diagnosis much in
the same way that services are for people with Schizophrenia. The
services for people without mental health problems who have a drug or
alcohol problem are managed through a separate service, which is not
part of the consultation - indeed some of these services are currently
being put out to tender by commissioners.

There is a need for further dialogue with commissioners on the delivery
model for substance misuse services.

iii) People presently living in secure environments

Services for people who require secure services are not part of the
model proposals or this consultation. These are specialist services and
are commissioned by the specialist commissioning team and are
provided in a number of locations across the North West (eg the Scott
Clinic, John Denmark Unit and Ashworth Hospital) and Nationally (e.g.
Learning Disability at Rampton Hospital and the unit for Dangerous
People with-a Severe Personality Disorder at Rampton and
Broadmoor) Hospital). Those secure services provided on the Hollins
Park site are also commissioned by the specialist commissioners and
are not included in the proposals for change.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Haiton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
50f18

Pl

g3



Page 48

iv) People with personality disorders

This is a real challenge for all the health and social care community.
Some estimates indicate as many as 1 in 20 people have a personality
disorder. Most people with a personality disorder will not require the
skills of specialist Mental Health Trusts, though changes in legislation
may alter this position. Services are not currently commissioned from
the 5 Boroughs Partnership for those people with a pure personality
disorder and no mental iliness. In the new model, people with a mental
iliness and a personality disorder will continue to be able to access
treatment.

V) Young people aged 16-17 years.

The position re: transition arrangements is unaltered by these
proposals and is currently being addressed through the Children’s
Strategic Commissioning and planning route. The CAMHs
Commissioning Strategy identifies the deficit of services for young
people of 16-19 years. This continues to be actively addressed by
Health and Social Care.

The current deficits in service provision for young people need to be
addressed through the implementation of the CAMHs Commissioning
Strategy with commissioners pursuing the development of strong and
seamless services for young people via whichever provider(s) they
choose.

The Trust agrees that this is an area of high priority and is committed to
working with commissioners and other partners to develop a range of
services for young people

Q. 2.4.i). The Committee also has concerns about the proposals to mix in-
patient settings for older people and younger adults. The Committee believes
that this is contrary to acknowledged good practice.

This is currently the position in two out of the four Boroughs for older people
(Knowsley and St Helens), and has been for some time, in accordance with
locally commissioned service patterns.

All adult services, on occasions, have children aged 16-17 admitted, and more
occasionally, children under the age of 16 have to be admitted as a last resort

due to there being no alternatives other than paediatric wards. Neither of these
options is satisfactory. (See also 2.4.ii)

The model is intended to reduce the risk for vulnerable people, of whatever age
in in-patient settings. We are committed to ensuring all vulnerable people are
risk assessed and that the current environments are remodelled to provide
separate areas within wards. The model also provides enhanced staffing in in-
patient areas, which will allow 1-1 observation when required.

3

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
6 of 18



Page 49

The Trust does not believe the proposals are contrary to current best practice
guidance and have written to Local Authorities seeking clarification as to the
Policy Guidance that it is thought that this approach breeches. To date we have
not received any specific information. However, we are continuing to review the
guidance and liaise with advisors of the Strategic Health Authority on this, and if
there is further guidance that we have not considered then we would be happy
to consider that guidance.

Q. 2.4.if) .The Committee is also concermned that people under the age of 18
may be admitted fo adult wards.

As noted earlier, the model will not alter the current position in the short term
and requires consideration and action by health service commissioners
regarding shortfalls of in-patient provision for young people.

Currently, young people under 18 are admitted to our in-patient wards, the
alternative is, on occasion, a paediatric ward, neither of which is ideal. When a
<child is admitted to an in-patient ward all our staff have access to support from
our Full-time Child Protection Specialist and access to the Mental Health Act
Commission as described previously.

The Trust notifies the Mental Health Act Commission of every admission of a
minor (under 16 years) into an adult in-patient bed. A visit is then made by the
Commission to scrutinise the arrangements made to make care as appropriate
as possible. A one to one nurse to patient ratio tends to be required. There
have been 30+ admissions of young persons under the age of 17 years onto
adult wards in the last year.

Cheshire and Merseyside have one of the lowest numbers of Tier 4 beds for
this age group in the country, though agreement has been reached to provide
more beds in the future. Very young children are admitted to Alder Hey
provision and adolescents to a unit in Chester.

The development of Early Intervention Services (EIS) will help this position but
not in the short term (services take up to three years to become operating at
capacity). Not all Boroughs have a funded established EIS, in ‘Change for the
Better’ this will be resolved

Q.2.5. There are concerns about the impact on alcohol services for adults and
older people; the proposals contain a reduction of allocated beds for alcohol
detoxification.

Currently, no funded bed exists for alcohol detoxification, nor will there or
should there be in the new model. All but the most highly complex alcohol
detoxification is carried out in the community. Complex alcohol detoxification
often requires proximity to and the back-up of general medical care and
intervention.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

7 0of 18



Page 50

3. Financial Information

Q. 3.1. The proposals in the plan are not supported by robust financial data. It
is not possible to identify the financial impact on services in the 3 Boroughs and
the Committee believes that until this issue is addressed it will not be possible
fo complete the scrutiny exercise.

The financial data continues to be finessed and we have shared that
financial detail available at the moment through individual iterative Borough
meetings with both Health and Local Authority partners. This position is
historically complex but we have committed to share further information. There
is currently in train a process (Foundation Trust (FT) Diagnostic), which will
result in a transparent position regarding funding being agreed between the
PCT and the Trust. This information will be available before the close of
consultation for the statutory agencies. The model is predicated upon the
current level of investment by each PCT continuing at its current level,

Q. 3.2. There are a number of concems in relation to financial issues, which are
not clear in the proposals, including details of the impact of the £1m savings
identified from back office functions and the £2.6m savings from cost releasing
efficiency savings, which are not clearly stated in the proposals.

Currently funding is identified to manage the implementation of the new model;
this budget is required for consultation, staff training and development. As part
of our cost-efficiency action back office functions are expected to contribute to
the reduction of the over-spend. The £2.6m relates to ‘Gershon’ action

requirements, which is also applicable to Local Authorities. The £1m corporate

contribution will limit the impact on front-line services and the Trust will manage
this.

Q. 3.3. The model of care seems heavily reliant on significant capital
investments in the Resource and Recovery Centres (RRCs). There is no clarity

about the likelihood of this funding or contingency plans should the funding not
materialise.

The funding is from our capital funding and it is available now for the minor (less
than £200k) alterations. Funding has also been identified from the Trust's
capital programme for work required in Peasley Cross Court.

The redevelopment of the Sherdley unit in the long term is subject to a Strategic
Outline Business Case (SOBC).

A number of people have expressed the view that the in-patient services at
Hollins Park should be relocated to central Warrington. We are not opposed to
this idea, however, the proposals to develop in-patient services in Warrington
does not form part of the current proposals, and would be subject to an SOBC.

Q.3.4 There is no clarity in relation to transitional resources. A significant shift

in the type of services provided is likely to lead to the need for transitional
resources to be invested, which will facilitate shifts in services.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

8 of 18

45



Page 51

The “Transitional” resources in fact have been invested over the last three
years and equate to several £million (i.e. see previous details of community
service developments), Additional resource has been allocated to the Trust to
manage the latter stages of implementation of the model of circa £0.5million.

Q. 3.5. There are concerns about the workforce implications and, in particular,
the impact on recruitment and the basis for decisions about filling posts.

The Trust is currently holding a significant number of vacancies at present,
around 10% of total. The model sees an overall reduction in staff
numbers, although through re-deployment, enhanced staffing will be
available for some services, e.g. in-patient facilities in RRCs. |t is
anticipated that existing staff will fill the vast majority of posts identified in the
new model.

The process for this will follow agreed best HR practice for Trust staff, which
was developed and agreed with staff side representatives.

The Director of Workforce and Development in the Trust will be working with his
equivalents in Local Authorities to ensure the implications of the various HR

policies are understood and any action required is agreed with the Local
Authority.

These issues will need to formally agreed as part of the Partnership
Agreements most of which are in the process of being formally negotiated

Q. 3.6. The Committee is particularly concemed that Ashton, Leigh and Wigan
do not appear to be properly factored in to the recovery plans. The Committee
acknowledge a statement that they are not included in the process but feels that
there is a lack of clarity about the financial impact of this.

Wigan services have to contribute to any Cash Release Efficieny Savings
(CRES). In addition, Ashton, Wigan and Leigh PCT isactually wanting to
continue to increase the PCT investment in Mental Health.

The FT diagnostic will provide transparent and agreed data for all.

Q. 3.7. The committee would like to know what the budget is for atypical drugs
and a comparison of spends in each borough.

The previous figures that were made available were from third party provider
organisations and had not been validated by the Trust, and they showed
significant variation that requires further review.

We are keen to have accurate information regarding prescribing and

expenditure and have commissioned a member of the Medical team to conduct
an Audit in August. The issue is as much a governance issue as a financial one
and the Trust would expect adherence to best practice guidelines by all parties

Issues paper for Joint Qverview and Scrutiny Committee (Haiton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

9 of 18

I

5 oof

o

(]

b2



Page 52

The developing SLA will cover the governance arrangements costs and
practices associated with the prescribing of atypical anti-psychotic medications.

Q.3.8. There are concerns about the impact on out of borough placements.
What are the current arrangements for joint placement?

The model proposes no changes to Health funded out of area treatments, the
costs for which are currently met by the PCT.

Social Care out of borough placements will clearly remain the responsibility of

the Local Authority and are not expected to be subject to, or impacted by, the
proposal of ‘Change for the Better'.

Q.3.9. Project management - funding for this and process. Wil partners have a
place on the project board?

Subject to conclusion of Consultation we would wish to establish local
implementation teams (many based on existing multi agency structures). It is
envisaged we will establish a Programme Board for the implementation of
‘Change for the Better’ and we would hope that Local Authority officers would
be part of the Project Board. :

Q. 3.10. Future funding priorities - given the pace of Government change we
may have to look at a different model in the future. How can we resolve this?

We can only work with existing policy and it would be inappropriate to agree
finances on unconfirmed policy. The proposed model is not only based on
evidence it is also congruent with national policy. Both health and social care
policy is subject to change continually in association with national policy
direction and ongoing research into practice.

Q. 3.11. The Committee would like reassurance that finance invested by
individual Boroughs remains within that Borough and is not used to subsidise
other boroughs.

In respect of PCT investment this will be the case should the option for 4 RRC
be approved. Clearly a number of indirect costs are apportioned across all of

the five boroughs, e.g. Child Protection, Mental Health Act Managers, and
Control of Infection.

It is possible that the impact of Patient Choice may affect this in the longer term,
however, we estimate this will be marginal.

However, if a two-centre more centralised model is adopted, the money will
follow patients as this service may be provided from 2 boroughs (i.e. on 2 sites
not four. We hope this is not the case but this remains an option within the
consultation.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
' 10 of 18



Page 53

4. In-Patient Beds

Q.4.1. There is some confusion in the various documents about the number of
in-patient beds. The Committee has concerns about the level of service for
people who would have been utilising these in-patient beds, particularly in the
light of the described over occupancy.

The proposed bed numbers reflect the Royal College of Psychiatrists
recommended lower level figures and are based on evidence nationally and
locally. The numbers are as per the consultation document. The picture is
slightly complicate due to the way occupancy is calculated i.e. figures include
people who are on home leave and people from another borough. The model is
based on future service delivery and configuration not the present i.e. the
demand for beds in the future will be different than it is today because of the
community service infrastructure.

It should be noted that the four boroughs have the benefit of a better developed
community infrastructure to build upon as a starting point for further
development than'has been the case in some of the exemplar areas.

Q.4.2. The Committee were concerned that the proposals relating to in-patient
beds do not include psychiatric intensive care.

Currently, only Wigan borough has a Psychiatric Intensive Care unit (PICU).
Admission to a bed from another borough has been difficult at times.

These beds, and those new beds for which capital funds have been recently
obtained, are additional to the numbers of beds proposed within the model.
Funding for this service is outside of, and additional to, the current funding
arrangements and remains so in the future model. It is a commissioning
decision to fund or not to fund these beds.

The Commissioning Strategy states the need for at least one PICU with higher
levels of security. We will have a service available before the end of the year,
based on the Hollins Park site, that other Trusts are purchasing and would hope
that local negotiations with PCTs will conclude shortly.

The availability of local beds will reduce Out of Area Expenditure by PCTs on
such provision. The longer-term impact of effective community services in
admissions for intensive care will need to be evaluated.

Q.4.3. The impact on Council services, particularly the impact on the
infrastructure currently in place and the type of accommodation required in each
Local Authority given the planned bed reduction.

Most people with metal health problems live at home and the model aims to
ensure that this continues to be the case wherever possible.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
11 of 18

-5



Page 54

It is important that people with mental health problems and their carers should
be able to access mainstream services, though some may need support to do
s0. In many respects the Councils’ planning will have addressed this, as
capacity for services would have been designed to cater for all people
irrespective of their disability. It is recognised that some of those services are
currently not available to people at present in some boroughs.

The Commissioning Strategy refers to a range of supported accommodation
being required with modernised day provision, not in institutional settings.

The numbers of people who require some form of special accommodation is not
going to increase as an outcome of reducing the number of in-patient beds, but
they will continue to require care packages to be planned. People who are
currently likely to lose their homes or tenancies due to their illness and
associated behaviours, would be provided with more support by community
services and thus prevented from reaching that position

5. Access to Services

Q.5.1. The Committee is concerned about proposals to develop access and
advice centres within each borough, as a single. gateway to specialist mental
health services. Based on the information provided, the Committee believes
that further thought should be given to access to mental health services being
from within Primary Care and other tier 2 services.

Access and Advice centres are an important part of the model. The
Commissioning Strategy refers to such services as-Single Points of Access
(SAP) (Ref: p.63). The consultation is clear about what it proposes i.e. that
these services are based in local RRCs. It is critical that such a service exists in
a borough; it is less critical where it ‘sits’. The Trust is actively considering a
number of themes that have emerged from the consultation so far; this is one of
those themes.

Q. 5.2. The Committee are disappointed that the RRC model seems mainly
focussed on 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. services and the details of other out of office
hours services are sparse. The Committee would welcome further information
about staffing levels and implications for Council services out of hours.

The RRC is a 24-hour operation in terms of Crisis Resolution and Home
Treatment and In-patient Beds. Assertive Outreach will be PIG complaint 8am
to 8pm. Access and Advice services will also need to be operating 24/7.

The Enhanced Therapy sessions are indicated as 9-5 and from a resource
perspective that reflects the “quantity” of time available. As the service becomes
established we believe there will be opportunities to be more flexible about the
times the resource is made available. The trust will trial different patterns of

provision by spreading the available capacity over different hours and will
respond to feedback from service users.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
12 0of 18

52



Page 55

Q. The committee would like a comparison of Assertive Qutreach Services —
what currently exists and what will be required.

Investment in Assertive Outreach Services

Current Current Future Future

Investment* Caseload Investment Caseload

000s 000s
Halton £201 84 £426 84
St Helens £412 72 £393 72
Watrington £303 24 £303 60

* Services are being provided at higher levels of input than that for which
funding has been obtained through commissioning. The re-deployment of
resources from in-patient provision will allow these services to be fully
funded. In addition, working practices will be standardised to effect
efficient delivery in all the teams

The levels of Assertive Outreach will be Policy Implementation Guide (PIG)

compliant and be sufficient to meet the anticipated demand. The table above
reflects services from pre-PIG, currently and in the future

6. Impact on Council Services

Q. 6.1. The Model of Care refers to the impact on Council services including
social care, however, the Committee were concerned that detailed information
was not available.

The impact of new services, Assertive Outreach, Crisis Resolution, Early
Intervention in Psychosis, and Access and Advice,-have and will provide a
positive impact for service users and carers.

In tackling the issue of stigma and prevention it is important that people with

mental health problems and their carers should be able to access mainstream
services.

In many respects, the Councils’ planning will have addressed this, as capacity
for services would have been designed to cater for all people irrespective of
their disability to help ensure that people with a mental health problem are able
to recover and resume their lives in mainstream society. This is inherent in
social inclusion policies

Delivering care in people’s own homes assists in the maintenance of the
existing family and friend support mechanisms and networks. These are very
often lost when a person is admitted to hospital, particularly for what may be a

lengthy period currently. This would be expected to have the positive impact of
reducing the levels of complex care packages.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
13 of 18

B
Jo




Page 56

The Trust is committed to the further development and agreement of detail with
its partners for the delivery of integrated community services in support of the
model, should it be supported.

Q. 6.2. The committee are unclear as to the future functioning of community
mental health teams and how they will operate under the proposed model of
care.

In response to the Comprehensive Health and Social Care Commissioning
Strategy for Adults the NHS will target its resources on those with the greatest
need (Enhanced CPA). The Strategy identifies the continuing need for a team
of multi-disciplinary practitioner providing ongoing care and support to people
with serious mental health problems.

Detailed operational issues will be progressed locally with Local authority and
Trust staff.

Q. 6.3 The committee are concerned about the impact on Council day services
given the proposal to close day units.

The Commissioning Strategy suggests that the need for day services as
currently provided will ‘melt away’. (Ref: pp 66-67). Many Local Authorities have
already decommissioned day services. It is recognised that day services are not
the most effective way to deliver modern mental health services, nor the most
socially inclusive.

The Trust have offered to fund an independent assessment in respect of day
services, however Local Authority officers have indicated they have the capacity
to undertake this internally, discussions are ongoing on how best to progress
this.

7. Consultation Processes

Q. 7.1. The committee are concemed that there was some evidence that the
consultation processes did not appear to be thorough and adequate.

This Consuitation reflects the Cabinet Office’s code of practice for written
consultations in addition to the Overview and Scrutiny of Health Guidance
document. The six main criteria of the code are as stated below:
»  Consult widely throughout the pro'cess, allowing a minimum of 12
weeks for written consultation at least once during the development of the
policy. ‘ '

*  Be clear about what your proposals are, who may be affected, what
questions are being asked and the time-scale for responses.

e Ensure that your consultation is clear, concise and widely accessible.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
14 of 18

54



Page 57

° Give feedback regarding the responses received and how the
consultation process influenced the policy.

(NB: the formal consultation process has not yet reached this stage, as the
public consultation does not conclude until 24" August, and the response
date for statutory agencies has been extended until 15" September)

*  Monitor the Trust’s effectiveness at consultation, including through the
use of a designated consultation co-ordinator.

(NB: This is being managed by an external company)

. Ensure your consuitation follows better regulation best practice,
including carrying out a regulatory Impact Assessment if appropriate.

(NB: This is in process)

The Trust has followed these guidelines and has obtained advice from the
Strategic Health Authority and the Trust’s solicitors.

The Trust expects to receive a Report of the Consultation on 30" August
and intends to issue copy to partners thereafter. :

Directors of the Trust have also attended Impact Assessment meetings with
Local Authority Colleagues during April and May 086.

An informatian pack on the consultations is available.

Q. 7.2. The panel appreciate the extension of the timescale in relation to the
Statutory Joint Scrutiny Committee, but feel that the timescales for the public
consultation and the fact that they will still end on 24 August did not allow
proper time for the full and proper involvement of service users, carers and
staff.

Please refer also to the response above.

It should also be noted that the Trust has had the benefit of feedback and
consultation with service users and carers regarding service provision, both
informally and formally, over the last two years. E.g. via - The Acute Care
Forum, the Patient and Public Involvement Forum (PPIF) (15" May '06) and
local service user and carer groups. A formal consultation event, funded by St
Helens PCT in 2004 as part of a review of local services, identified service user
concerns and desires for changes in services, that have been further informed
and confirmed since that time.

A series of 19 meetings were held with staff during the period 29" March and
25" April with more than 500 staff attending these.

In addition to the planned public consultation events, presentations have been

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
15 of 18

32



Page 58

given to:

Local Implementation Teams/Mental Health Partnership Boards
Professional Executive Committees of PCTs

PCT Boards

Overview and Scrutiny Committees in all boroughs

Executive Officers of Local Authorities

A total of 12 planned public meetings and 19 other events have been held since
1% June 20086.

The formal Section 11 public consultation period of 12 weeks commenced on
1* June *06 and Section 7 consultation commenced at the same time.

Q. 7.3. The committee are concerned that publicity relating to the consultation
process did not appear to be thorough and adequate, and there seemed to be a

general lack of awareness amongst key professional groups and the public
about the consultation process.

There was an issue initially in St Helens when advertising posters had not been
delivered. This was identified early in the period, and was immediately
addressed. We are not aware of any significant issues since then.

Two rounds of advertisements of consultation events have been placed in local
press in each borough.

Consultation documents were issued to 190 people and representatives of
organisations and all mental health service areas had documents and summary
leaflets available for patients/clients and visitors.

As noted above, 19 meetings were held with staff in the services affected by the

proposals. In addition, separate meetings have been and continue to be held for
some groups of staff.

In addition to the public consultation meetings, there have been many borough-
based meetings for many groups as referred to previously e.g.

Service User groups

Carers’ groups

Primary Care Trusts

Professional Executive Committees of PCTs

Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Local Implementation Teams for the National Service Framework/ Mental
Health Partnership Boards.

Voluntary organisations.

Arrangements were made for a group of service users to travel to Norfolk and
Waveny Mental Health Trust to visit the services provided there.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee {Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
16 of 18



Page 59

Q. 7.4 The committee felt that some of the language used in the consultation
events made it difficult for people to properly understand the issues.

This is helpful feedback, we have not received this comment before, though we
recognise the issues are complex. We have given feedback to the presenters
regarding the language used and apologise if this was not right on all
occasions.

- 8. General Points

Q. 8.1. The committee felf that some general points were worthy of further
consideration. These include:-

Q 8.1.i) The lack of clear links with existing commissioning strategies for adults
of working age and older people:

The Trust is uncertain of the basis of this comment as the proposed model is
based on the Comprehensive Commissioning Strategy. The older people's
Commissioning Strategy was still in the process of development and finalising
at the time that the new model was being considered around the boroughs. Itis
recognised, however, that there will be a need to dovetail service changes with
the recently approved commissioning strategy for older people.

To assist in the cross-referencing of the proposals to the Commissioning
Strategy, page references are noted on presentation slides and a separate
reference paper has been compiled for the Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. (Appendix 1)

Q. 8.1.ii) The proposed Model of Care does not cover all recommendations of
the scrutiny exercise “scrutiny of hospital discharge services for St Helens
residents with mental health problems”.

A joint health and social service action plan and response to the
recommendations is in process and a report is to be provided to the Overview
and Scrutiny Panel as previously advise by Jan East to Mike Wyatt on 8" June

2008. Changes made consequent to the action plan will carry forward into the
new model.

Q. 8.1.iii). The focus on carers within the proposed Model of Care seems weak
and carers issues do not appear to have been properly addressed.

This was highlighted early in the consultation period and action for carers could
have been made more explicit in the Model of Care. However, the issue has
been discussed at many of the public meetings and carer’'s needs are implicit in
the model and in how we deliver all our services and use Effective Care Co-
ordination. We have also been meeting with carers’ representatives and carers’
groups in different boroughs.

The Trust is committed to working with all partners to ensure that carers’ issues
are addressed.

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06

17 of 18

27



Page 60

A list of all the consultation events that have taken place is compiled and being
updated regularly. The most recent update is available as an additional item of
information for the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Q. 8.1.iv) The need for a clear and robust training programme for staff at alf
levels to support the proposed changes.

This is well recognised by the Trust, thus an existing Assistant Director is to be
seconded, from the 14" of August, to the post of Assistant Director Staff
Development. His role will be to focus on and support the development of the
workforce as required to support the model.

The additional staffing for in-patient areas will facilitate the ability to release staff
for training

Q. 8.2. Governance and accountability arrangements — how will the new model
fit with current agreements?

Internal to the Trust, its governance arrangements will continue, subject as now
to external scrutiny for compliance against standards.

Locally in boroughs, these will continue to be agreed and exercised through the
Partnership Agreements. The provision of integrated services has been a
strong feature and benefit of local services and its continuation is an integral
element of service delivery, whatever the model.

Externally, the future commissioning by PCTs will be through detailed Service
Level Agreements rather than block purchasing. This will benefit the Trust and
PCTs in greater clarity of what is funded and what is provided. This will enable
improved governance to be applied.

Q. 8.3. Relationship with West Cheshire PCT - currently Halton provides a
service to residents in Helsby and Frodsham. The committee requires further
details about how this will be managed and financed in the future.

We will only in the future provide services for which the Trust is funded. We will
be happy to provide services if they are funded.

Discussions are ongoing to this effect and we expect this issue to be resolved
as part of the refining of financial allocations through the FT Diagnostic
Process. ¥

Issues paper for Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Halton, St Helens & Warrington) 10.08.06
18 of 18

(@)

5



Page 61

r | esed
¢ uopoeg ‘G| abed

"sial] Jje je Bunelado sadinuss e Jo) euajuo Apjiqibie pue
sjoenuod ‘shemyjed a1ed ‘suoijeaioads }sngol pue 1es|o Jo Juawdojaasg

eua) Aiiqibig

Z] ered
¢ uoljoag ‘G| abey

‘wnnuiuod pue Aydosojiyd japow A1oAoo9l ay)

UlypIm sjeledo |Im sa1juad 92IN0SaYy "s80IAaS AJUNWILoD aaIsusyaidwiod
10 uoisinoid |In) sawnsse Yoiym ‘suonoslold sisuieiyohsd jo absjjon

jeAoy JuaLnd Uo paseq aq pinoys AJjeoo} yoes Jo} uoisinocid paq ainn
"S1OpJOSIp jejuaw Bulnpus Jo/pue SNOLBS YJIM Sjuaio Jo Juswabeuew

pue a1ed PasSeq-9oUapIAS aAoaye Bulsaljap jo oiqedes ‘ybnoioq yoes Ul
PaUOISSILILWIOD 89 PINOYS Safuad AISA0Dal pue 90IN0sal Yjjeay [ejustu MaN

(sDyy) sanuan
Al9A029Y pue 821N0S9Yy

1sn1L SHN

“aoe|d aye] Jouued syIys sy} Aym suoseal

SEe pa)I0 uayo ale Ing ‘epusbe UoeSIuIBpOoLW By} JO 808} dU} Ul Al} S10108)
9S9U} JO ||V "SI81eD 119y} pUR S19SN S2IAIS9S U0 SBY SSauj|l [ejuaul Jo aposido
ue yoiym ‘uondrusip sy} osiwiXeul 0} SOAISS i pue ‘SedInosal Uo ujelp
ejeuoipodoidsip B sejniisuod 11 ‘seoialas Jusnedur uo ainssaid ajqelsjoiul
ssoe|d 1] "wie} Buo| 0} wnipau 9y} Ul S|qeuUIBISNS Jou AlJESIO S| UoKENNS SIY |

“Aouednaoo paq 900} Jono Je Buluuns syun jusijedu; jBoo] aousy

‘UOISSIWPE 0] DAJBUIS}E OU SBWIIBUIOS SI 819y} jey} 1no juiod usyo piey

By} Ul s1auonijoeld "osuodsal 1sli} 8y} Usyo 00} S| uoissiwpe jeydsoy 1oy
UjjesH [elusiy £861 Ul Ul sjdiound e Se pauliysua Sem SAljeuUlS)|e SAOL]Sal
1Se9| ay} jey) 1o.} ay} aydsa(g "uoissitupe [eydsoy 0} oABUIS)E OU Sajedipul
3SH BY} 819yM ‘SSOUBISWINDIID SWaLXS JO Jsow ay} ui 3doaxs ‘|ejdsoy

Ul uey} Jayjel sawoy je papiaold st ‘qusiujess) pue poddns jsow apisbuole

u sagines

S}INpY 10} AGejesys BuiuolIsSIIWO) Wodj Sjoel)xy

Lo

gl

1apeg ayj Joj abueyn/eien jo s|opo Jo sjesodoid ay3 1oy siseg Bunensnyj|

90°80°0} AUnINIOS @ MIIAISAQ JUIO[ 10} SONSS] (Y

ITY] diysiaulied sybnoiog g

| Xipuaddy




Page 62

puonoeg ‘g abey

JOUISIp swioy sjeipaul 418y} apIsino papiaoid
S8OIAISS U] 81D Buialsoal s1asn 801A9S Ypm JoBjuoD ulejuiew djay
0} @ouejsIsse Yy)m ‘psau 0} Bujploooe siaies pue saljiwe} 0) yjoddng e
"gjqissod se awoy 0} as0j0
Se ‘92]04o a10W SIBYO YOIYM ‘uoisinold paseq-Aluniiiod Uo SNooLY e
‘Ajejes pue Ajsrendoidde sjdoad sjqessuina spoddns yoiym ‘@oINles Y
"saolAles s,o|doad Japjo pue abe Bupjiom usamiaq aled yyesy [ejus
O Jajsuel} pue seulj uoijeslewsp pajejai-obe JUaLINO aY} O} pus Uy e
"SO2IAISS POasNo0) AusA0sal JO Yiomiau Aouabe-ninw y e
‘eale ayj ssoloe aoe|d
Ul 4.0} peau yoiym ‘uonelnbiyuod soines Jo sejdiound pue sjuswsd T,

uoneinbyuos
9o1M9s Jo sojdIsulid

| uonjoesg ‘G abey

's80Inles 8,9)doad Japjo pue abe Bupjiom usemiaq aied yyesy
Jejusiu Jo Jajsuel} pue saulj Uojjedlewsp pajejos-obe Juaiund sy} 0} pus uy

o

SS922€ 92IAI9S
Buneuiwiosip abe-uoN

¢l ered
¢ uonodg ‘gl abed

‘pesiwiIxew aq
PINOYS 90JOPHIOM BIED [B]O0S 8Y) puR Siayiom A1sA009y pue aw] poddng
‘SJUBNSUOY) 8SINN SB YOoNs S3j01 Mau Jo |epuajod ay] "salnusd AIleAcosl
pue 821nosal Jo juswdojeAsp 8y} Ul pasijeal st suoisssjoid |e jo fenusjod
I} 8y} Jeu} ainsus pinoys uoneinbyuod pue juswdojeAsp S2IOPHOAA

Bupjiopp Jo
sAepp MoN pue Buiujel)

SDIOPJIOAN PUB SOUY

"UOISN[OUI [BID0S 3INSUS 0] ‘SIaled Jisy] pue Siasn 90INSS

Jo saoueyo ey Aueulpio asiwixew o} ‘sajdiounid A1oA02a1 Uo paseq Juawieal)
pue aed Jo |[opow e dojanap o} Jayiaboy utol pjnoys seoinles poddns pue
sueloIulo ‘Ajisii4 “sybnoiog Jnoj sy} SS0I0E SIDIAISS U)jEsYy [ejusl Wiojsues)
0} 9oe[d o)e] 0} pasu SPIYS [eluswepun) oM} S1esh aAll 1Xau ay} J8AD

T G - =5

|9POIN A19A023Y

90°80°01 Aunniog .m MBIIAIDAQ JUIO[ 10 SONSS] 19y
I xipuaddy




Page 63

. SaljIoe) Jused-ul UO pUBLWIBP S} aonpal
sjuowdojoAsp yons jey) (sj3seomaN pue weybujuuig YuoN ul se yons)
douapIAe ajdwe S| 819y | "SPaSU [EI0] }99L 0} AUSIDAIP JUSIDIYUNS JO SODIAISS

Apunwiwos jo wnioads e Buidojensp spremo} siseyduus Jo Jiys e aq pjnoys
alay) ey pabpamouoe Ajjes1aniun si 3 siyl jje spdsaq "sanl} Ateulpio siasn
20IAI8S 0] uofidnisip ay) Buisiwixew saAeuls)je AJUNWLLOD JO souasqe

89U} U] POSN-JOA0 ale SaJIAISS Jusjjed-u) UIsIaym Sasiie ajo1I0 SNOIDIA

V ‘jusuneady pue uoddns paseq Ajjlunwiuwiod jo abuel e Jo asuadxs

ay3 je uoisinoad Juaned-ur uo siseydwd ue 0} ps| Sey Yoiym SSOIAISS

Ul JUSWIS|AUL J8pun d1uoiyd ‘wiel-buo) Aq papunodwod si usened siy|,
(syuswdojansp

GG obed 8oIMes Jo Aiejjo] spoo-)sod pue juswdojaasp oljelouAsolpl 8y} o} Bulsiey) -
asn paq 3d-uj uo “
Adwoid swoy winyas 0} pspoddns ylomisu AJunwiwiod
aie ojdoad jey} ainsus 0} palayo aq PINOYS SSNIAIJOE jeuUoljeala) JO SSOUBAIOAYD
pue ‘Adessy; yuswieal jo abues e ‘feydsoy ul si Aejs jusned-uiayy j} e JO 9OUBPIAT -
"juswiea) pue aleo sy} Ul POAJOAUI UIRWS)
pUE JISIA 0] SSljiLue) 10} [OAR1} JO WNWIUIW B UM 3jqissod se awioy Aunwwos
s,uosiad e 0} Jeau se papinold aq pinoYs saoiAles Juaiied-ul jnoy e 0} uoisinoid Juaned
poddns jo @o1nos -ul twouyj JuswAojdsp
urew ay) aq pinoys sjdoad |ji Ajo}noe 10} SBOINISS JUSWIIES | BUWIOH e 821n0S24 JO YIYS - .
Ajjeoo] a|ge|jieAe Sa2IAISS I9Y}0
Jo abuel sy} ‘4o uonouny e si pue ‘uo spuadep usyo alow palnbal juswyealj
uoisinold Jusnjedut Jo Junowe ay) jey) s}sebbns aouepinb Jusosy e 2WOH pue uonjosay

SISLID JO SABUIBHY
,seale Agqieau 1ay)o yim paredwod uonendod jo pesy Jad speq jusnedu
oujeIyoAsd ajnoe jo Ajddns-ian0 oAjjejal B mwcmtmaxm sybnoloq inoj ay} - v uononpay peg -

: 7 = o

/ uonoasg. ‘gy obed

e T

90°80°01 AUlNIas @ MIIAIBAQ JUIO[ 10§ SSNSS| 19y
_ | xipuaddy




Page 64

GQ abey

"21ed paseq |e)idsoy O} SAleUIS}e [Ba) B JOAIRP JSNW SWes) | YD

"‘Hoddns asusjui Ajybiy apinoid o} Ajioeded sy aiinbal osje yjog

‘19sn 9ojA19s 8y} Jo Buluonouny ainyny ay3 Buiroidwi jo [eob Atewnd ay) ypm
‘uswabeuew pue Bupje) ysu o) yoeoidde ajqixa)} e Aq pasusoeieyd ale
s991M8s Yjog “Jeydsoy ur papinold uaaq aaey Ajsnoinald Aew siy| awoy je
peapiaoid S| justueal pue a1ed Jo [aAs] sjeudoldde ue aiaym ‘SeoURISWINDID
pajejaiun ul Jo ‘SISUD B Ja)je 10 310}aq paIdAllep aq Aew Juswijesas) aWoH

"UOl)BJOLIS}aP 10 ulRY

Jaypuny pioae o} asuodsal pides e salnbal siyl "uosiad sjqeleujna Ajsnoinaid
B 10} Juane snopiezey e Aq Ajuappns parsbbiy) usyo aie sasu) “Buiuonouny
Jeuosiad Jo j9A9)] a|qe)daooe ue 0} S1aJed JIsy} pue Josn 90IAI8S BU} 910)Sal
pue wJey Jayuny asiwuiw o} poddns aaisuajul Buuayo ‘SIS0 yjesdy jejuaw
e jo sjuauodwod oyoads ay} U0 UMOP SIBaq UO)N|josal SIS "82IAIaS 8y} JO
sjusuodwod oM} aY) UsoM]e( UoEDIBWISP POO)SIapuUn AjJes|o e 8q 0} spasu
aloy]. -obueyd [euoijeulIo)suLl) JO) SISALIP ASY 8U) 8q |liM S8oIAIeS 9sey |

juswijeal] SWoH
pue uonnjosay sisu9

Ly obed

S19Y]0 UeY) 8SIOM Se pabps|moudoe

9Q 0} aAeY BWOS ‘[eap! s sjun juajedul 8jnoe ay} JO SUOU JSIIYAN
‘lepowr A1anooal ay} poddns Ajjny jou op Asy] -sepusbe

U9aM]aq UOHEUIPIO-0D Jor] puB ajenbsapeul ale saljjioe) Ajunwwio) e

Y poddns 03 yromiau
sa9iAlas Ajunwwod
pajeibajul jo uonealo
‘pue sjudWUOIIAUD
jusned-u) pasoidul

10} Juswalinbay

"s@oInBs @say) Buisn ajdoad ayy jo Buteg-jlam pue najjjw opnadelsy) ey}
uo j1oeduwl aAljebsu B sey SjuSWUONAUS 9say) jo Aljenb Jood ayy Ajjusiing
pue ybiuieno uaddey Jou [jIm SIY} ‘Spaqg asey) JO Jaquunu ay) aonpal

0} syees Absjess siy} ybnoyyy “spiepuels ojqejdesde joaw s)iun assuy)
bal |jm spun jusijed ul JusLINO By} JO SWOS

i -

90°80°0} Aunniog @ MaIAISAQ JUIO[ 10) SONSS| 19y
1 xipuaddy




"AIBAI|2p 92IMI8S Paj-spasu uey}

laljjel ao1nosal [euonipel) pebusjjeyo osje sey epuabe uonesiusepow sy |
"spaau |eso| Bunos|jal a1eo Jo wnnoads e JSAlap 0} s)eioge}jod pue sayjebol
11} S92IAI9S MOY JO MBIAIOAO d1fajel)s e dojanap o} alojelay; Juepoduwl

1] "S1HIAID paysiigelsa jo uonouny pue 9|0l Buihunuod ay} uonsanb
‘yoeaNQO SAIPBSSY SE Yons ‘seojAIes isieioads mau 8y 'SedIAles yjeay
[ejusiy Ajlunwiwod 1oy sebusjieyo Jenoiped asod ‘uonelsuabal Ajunwiwiod
¢g abed pue uolesispow s21A19s ‘foyjod ognd Arerodwisjuod jo siejjid uimy sy S1HIND

T[]
O
o
(@)
Q)
i

‘yoeolidde Jus}sSiSUOD B 8I1NSud 0}
SOOINISS [& SS0Jor sa10ljod UOWIWOD Sey } Jey} SINsus [imisni] ay| e
"AIIN03s o s|aAs| Jaybiy epinoid 0} sjqe aq pjnoys jsnij
SHN ybnolog g ayj ui NDId duo }ses| Je ‘sased yons sbeuew 0] e
"alnjonuselul Y)jeay [ejusiu AUnwiioD [ed0] soueyus Jayunj
0} pasn oq pjnoys peasesjal Asuow oyl (/-900Z JeeA [ewueuy)(1HYD)
jo uoisiaoid ay) Jo Jeak jsii U} UIUIM pajeulue oq pinoys ‘10}oas ajeaud

61 obed ay) woly spaq NDid Buipnpur ‘Ajagoe paq sujeiyoAsd spnoe jo eseyoind
'S19d 01 (6002 je J8 ueAy) ainjipuadxa }s00 ybiy jueoyiubls si pue sjebpng £11IN23s Jo [9Ad] YIM
81 obed  S1VO 40 %l Ajsrewixoidde seynyjsuoo sjuewsdeld NDId 40 3500 8yl spaq NOld 0} SS90y

0

= wgém «W%

90°'80°0] AURNIOS R MBIAIDAQ JUlOf 10) SONSS] 19y
| xipuaddy

&
Rr=



Page 66

¢¢G abed

-‘Buiuue|d aied pasijenpiaipul
ybnouyj uoneuipio-09 a1e) aAoayg Aq pajelauab suoneoadxs sy
199w 0} ajenbape Jabuoj ou s} anuad Aep jje s} 9z1s auo, ay} ‘ajdwiexs 104

S99IAI19S Aep
jeuonipel} Jo uoessan

99-69 sebed

‘Buiuueld
a1e0 Aienooal ybnoiyy wajsAs ayy jo Ayoedes Buluoissiuwios-01oiw

ay} dojanap jjim Asyy alowayung ‘e 10} yyeay |ejusw poob jo uonowold
9y} pesj pue saiiunwiwod [ed0] yim sdiysuonejal dojonsp o} paseld

1s8q 99 os|e |jim Asy ] "sieses o} poddns Jo uoisinoid sy} pue ‘uoisnjoul
jeroos pue Aleaodal Buijowoid uo snoojal |iim swes}-asay] swajqold yyesy
[elusw Buunpua pue sSnouas UM asoy) o} ared pue poddns Suiobuo apinoid
0} swes} Areuldosip-pinw peseq Ajesiydeiboab ioj psou e aq 0} enunuo
JIIM 818U} JBY} JESID SI Il JOASMOH "S1 HIND duauab jo uojouny pue ajol aimny

8y} uolsanb 0] saales Ajpaiqnopun swes) pasijeuojouny) JO UOIRONPOJIUI 8y |

'sio1ed

10} s90IA18S |9)jeied apinoid pinoys swes) ay | "uonelbsjul [euonesiuebio
INOYIM 1O UJIM ‘B1ed [Bl00S pue yjjeay ssoioe Juswsbeuew aul| a|buls
pajesbajul annbal os|e M 821A8S AJUNWIWLOY) |NISSBIINS Y "S19Sh SJJAISS
Buipnjoul aAlas ABY} UYoIym ‘Saiiunwiwiod sy} Jo aAljejuasaldal aq pjnoys
20I0p|OM By | “sisuonpoeld jie jo Juswuoliaua Buppom pue snooy Arewid
ay] aq pinoys Asy | “diysiepes) jeusbeuetu pue [eoiuld yyum payeibsiul
Ajjeuoisssjolid Ajn} 2q pjnoys swes) pasijeuoljouny asay ] ‘Aemyjed areo
pue yoddns 1oy} Buoje spesu s Jasn 8oIA1es e Jos)al Ajgjeudoldde siow
yoiym swiea} Ajunwiwiod jo sbues e dojgasp 0} aoueyd SU} SI8Y0 S8OIASS
[euonouny AjBuiseaiou] spiemo) s | HIND ouausb woly Aeme saow ay |

o o T e

sjuatugalby
diysiaupedsuoisiaoad
pojelrbajul

- }JO uopenupuon

diysiopea jeaiuld

90°80°0) AURNIOS @ MBIAIBAQ JULOf 10} SONSS] 9y
L xipuaddy




Page 67

19-99 sebed

asneosaq ‘abieyosip Apwiy yum swejqoid pue uonesijendsoy ‘esdejal
0} Bunngujuod se uolepOWILLOIO. Jjge)NS JO aouasge ayj o} julod
USLO pue MaIA SIy} aleys sisuonnoeid pue sueidjui) “sjusiisinbal
doy 119y} o auo se uoiepowwiodse sjeudoidde apo Ajjuanbaly sialed
pue s18sn 8oIAI9S (uoepowwodde papoddns Jo wnioads peoiqy e

- :aJe seopues poddns Ajunwiwod pajesbsjul jo sjuswsie Asy inoy syt

GG obed

"Bale 9y} SSOIO. SOOIASS U}eay |ejuswl Jo aoudjeAald ay) ul IsIXa 0}
senunuod A1eyo] apoo-jsod v “ainupuadxs pue spasu usamiaq diysuone|as
oy} ut enyy Ajjenbae st sty -sjuswieas) jeoibojoyohsd jo Ayjigejiene

ayj Ul se ‘pasu [eoo] pue uoisiroid [eoo| ussmiaq diysuole[al Snoiago ou
8q Aew a1y Jjnsal e sy ‘siabeuew pue sueIulO |BOO] JO WSEISNYIUS pue
Juswijiwwod ay} Aq Ajuo uaaup usyo ‘Ajprezeydey padojoaap Sa0IAISS JeL)
Juesw sybnoloq inoj sy ssoioe uolsia d16ajens sjbuls e Jo asussge ay )

sybnouloq ssoioe
SOIIAISS JO YIOoM]dU
Aunwuwod poajesbajul
Jo Aouaysisuod

Jo juswdojanaeq

‘diysteuped jo SaILLOU0DD Y}
pue uonuaaald ybnolyl ssausAjosye }S09 Jidy} [eaAal M pue ‘eljxa Bulop
uey} Jeyjel Ajjualeyip sbulyy op o} Jels alnbalasay] se yons saAjeniu|

sanjenul fjajes Ajunwwod vl Buibebuy e
$904N0Sal pue uonjewlojul buueys
‘siapinold aomuas Jayjo yum yoeosdde aaijeloqe|joo e Guidojors( . e
sswwelboid uonowold yyesy jejuews buisiuebiy e
swnio) Ajunwiwod uo eoussald jusisisuod e Bulysygeisgy e
sanueo Aep se yons sapijioey jsijeroads
uey} Joyjel ‘sbunias AJunwiios uj Jusweal) pue aieo jo Buusaieq e
:Buipnioul saljUNWWOD [BO0] Ul Way) ajeifajul 0} 18pIo Ul S2INISS
yjesy ejual [eoo] Aq payoune) aq cm”,o soApenul EYNILETIE] ﬁ.oo Jo abues

o

90'80°0} AUIINIOG 9 MIIAIBAQ JUIO[ 10) SANSS] :9Y

|l xipuaddy

[ Xqn)
oo



Page 68

"$10)003 Juepuadepuj 8yj PUE SIEJ [eIo0S 'Uj|eay SSOI0e
‘S3WAYDS Uoljepowodoe pue sadiales Aep ul yeys poddns Joj

ajendoldde osje si ewweibouid siy| "swes) pasijeuoRouny syj Jo Yiom

3y} yoddns pue juswajddns JIm YoIym ‘uoisnjoul [B100S pue AISA0D9l
Jo uonowoid ay} ul s|jss mau dojaaap o} Ayunpoddo sy yess sieyo
swweiboid sy} ‘seoiosas Bupsixe dojeasp o} Ajunpoddo juepoduw
ue yum Awouods yjeay [eoof sy} sjuasaid SIeNIoM Ye ]S ojul

Hels pajeijiye Ajjeuoisssjoid-uou dojoasp 0} aaieniul Jusdal S, YlesH
jo Juswpeds(g oy :swes) (Mels) Aanooay pue swij ‘poddng
'sbuies peseg Ayunwiwio pue sie) Aewnud ‘69 suoneoo)
9]qISSa00k SI0W Ul SJELLIO) SAJOBYS }SOD SI0W Ul paIoAllop a9 pjnod
saldelay; [eaibojoyohsd juanno MOY JSPISUOD JSNUU SIBUOISSIUWIOYD
"way} pasu Asy) usym pue aleym ‘saidelsy] s|gejieAe

Jo yoe| ay) o} julod Ajuanbauy siasn eoinieg seideiay) o|qISSe00Yy
"seoines Aq pabebus ale ‘sdnoib oluyle AjLioulu se

yons ‘sdnoib pepnjoxa AJUaLND YoIym 0} JusIXa dY} 8 [lIM SAJeIUl
SIY} JO $S800NS 8Y} JO SINSESW SU(Q) "SSNUSA paskq AJUNwWoD
Buisiewbns-uou uj papiroid ABuisealou; ale saolAlas se Aeme Jjow
JIm sesjued Aep aaey 0} Juswialinbal ayy awn JoAQ "saAneniul juiof
pue s90IN0sal Jo 8sn ay} YBnoly) SeoiA1es AJUNwLWOoD Wwealjsurew
10 Ayoedes oy Bugrojdxs se [jom se ‘Auaiayip sbuiyy Bulop

pue sBbuiyl mau Buiop SAJOAUI M SIY ] “uolBUIPpIO-0D) alen ybnoiy)
pajelpalu ale Yolym s1ash 9o1Aes Jo sdnolb pue sienpiaipul J0 spesu
3} 0} 8[qIX8)} 810W Yonwl awod9q 0} pasu Sa2IAI8S 207 ‘Buluiely
pue uoieonps ‘jJuswAojdwse uo snooj e ypm sbuiss jeuoinsul
Uey} Jayjes Aunwiwiod uj palsAljep sadinles Aep pasiulapoy

oW

1S8q ale spesu Jisy) a1aym tayjel ‘Aoueden e st a1ay} areym padeld
Jou aie slesn 99JAISS Jey)] 0S djgejieAr aq pjnoys suondo jo wnnoads

;«wwfe&w.% a

e whow: SoInIBS ummco:\_m SPSoU UOJEPOWIWOdD. JO b_w_ozﬁ oy} jo

O
o

90°80°01 AunnIog %@ MIIAIAAQ JUIOf 10} SONSS| 19y

I Xipuaddy



9 abey

U0 SUuosss| usy} ‘papnjoxa 10 pajeusije ‘JUBON|al JSOW Y} a8 OYm s1asn
eoinles osoy) buibeBus ul jnysseoons ale swies) asay} Jj ‘jeiousb ur swa)sAs
120 Joy Juabe abueyo jueoyiubis e aq 0} fepuajod sy seYy QY 9snesaq
Juepodwll st SIS HIND POPEONSAOC JO YoM 2y} Juswsiddns o} swes |

OV osn o} uojjejdws} e aq Aew alay} a1aym Apejnoiped ‘psatesaid si jepow
ey} jo Aybsjul sy Jey) seoiAIes JO uoBULIojSURS Bu) 1o} Jurpodul Ajrepa

SI Il "JoASMOH ‘swiea] yoeannQ saessy Buionponui o) pajejar sjoblie}
Buinsiyoe ui sybnoioq noy sy Jnoybnoiy) epew usaq sey ssaiboid poos

S9OIAIOS
yoeaanQ aARIoSSYy

9 sbed

Ishi] diysieuped sybnolog G sy} uijujod [eijua e woly

pebeuew pue psapoddns aq pjnoys SOOINISS 8S8Y) "'SOUBUIDAOL) S0IAISG

0} AjuLiojuod pue ‘soueuLopad Jo £OUSSISUOD SINSUS O} JSPIO U] "99IAISS
$S820Y JO Julod 86Ul ey ui a1e) Alelllld Uum soepaiul ay) Je toyieboy
Jeys ssay) ajeoo] 0} ejeudoidde sq Aew )i ‘suonuanisiul Ajzes jo sejdiound
a4} Jo diysIsUMO SulBjal We)sAS sjoym By} Jey) aInsue pue ‘esipedxs siy)
Ssauley 0} Japlo U] 'S HIND [enplaipul uj pakojdep ale syejs esay) Ajuaning

SOdY ul pajis 8q 03
pasodoud yjoq — a2iAIds
8JIAPY pUE SS920Y YIm

paiinbal diysuonejai
9S0]9 pue JusWddIURYUD
99IAI0G SISOYaAsd

u] uonUDANS}U| Ajaeg

Page 69

‘Juswssasse Apaads ajejijior) pue SOIAISS Y)IM JOBJUOD |BINUI YOLUS

0} ‘diystepes) jeojuljo apnjoul pue jeuoissaold-iinw aq pinoys swes) asay |

'slesn 82lA19s 10} doue)sisse ajeudoidde spremo} Bunsodubls aanosye

Ul }sisse 0} S90IN0Sal pue SedIAISS Jnoge abpajmouy JO UYljeam B alejnwinooe

ued pue ‘Buidesy| ajeb pue juswssasse uj asipadxs apinold Asy |

"81B2 ISWOISNO

" uo siseyduws Aneay e 90e|d 810j010Y} [IM PUE LOIOUN] [BLIOPBSSEqUE

ue uuopad [|Im ) ‘sadinies Jsijeloads ojul Aemaled ay) aq M vdS ayL

"SSOIAISS sI[eloads Ojul YI0M JO MOJj BU} sje|nbal os|e [[Im )]

‘uofjouny Suisod-ubis pue Juswissasse ue Se ||om Se slues) ale) Alewild o}

poddns spinold jiim saa1es oy Jo ped siy| “yels Aemales) pue aiel Aewid

orenpels) Buisn ‘aten Aewid yum soepsiul 8y} Je psieoso) aq pjnoys

SeoIJ9S Yjjeay [ejusuwl Jsieoads 0} S|ellojal ||e 10} sSa00e Jo Juiod 9|Buls v
e . : _ = =

diysiepesa jestul|d

(dvs — ss929y jo
sjuiod 9jbuig) saoinlag
92IAPY pUB SS90y

90°80°0L AUNNIOG 9 MAIAISAQ JUIO[ 10§ SONSS| 19y
| xipuaddy

LN
(e



Page 70

0l

uoisinosd

pue uoneinbyuod wes) Jsieioads 10y apinold pjnoo jsniy ybnolog-ued e jey)
8[B0S JO S3ILUOUOCIS 8y} WOl) UOISINCID 82IAISS JUSLIND Ul pasijeal SI Jjausq
ON "S1HWD Alendiped ‘seoinu9$ AJUNWILLOD JO LORESIUISPOLL 10} JOAS|

B UBY} Jayjel S80IAI8S AjUNLWIWOD 0} UO }|og B SB ISIXa S90I8s OV Apualing

"weisAs ajoym ayy Jo Juswdojanap

oy} ayenwis [jm sy Apuatayip sbuiyl Buiop ispym sysu abeuew

0} pasedaid si Ji Ji JusWaje SOIAISS DAJRUIBEWI pUR SAIRaIO B 8q UBD

QV 'ajowlsypn- ‘9oIAISS JO seale 19

o

, m&%@%ﬁ%@& e

Yjo Aq paules] 8q ueDd dUOP S| Sy} MOy

90°80°0} AunNJISS @ MIIAIBAQ JUIO[ 10} SONSS] 9y

| Xipuaddy

O



Page 71

APPENDIX 3

JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

KEY ISSUES FOR MEETING WITH PCT’s 24" AUGUST 2006

1. IMPACT ON SERVICE USERS AND CARERS

Are the PCT's satisfied that the plans are based upon the needs and wishes
of service users and carer ?

All 4 boroughs have ratified the 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategy, which
contained a significant body of needs analysis and intelligence in relation to
feedback from service users and carers. In broad terms this information
translated into a possible direction of travel, which included Resource and
Recovery Centres to transform in-patient environments.

Individual boroughs'have also demonstrated a range of engagements both
on-going and specific to inform service planning and redesign. Therefore, a
continuous process is operating to ensure service users and carers are
involved in the construction of local services. This would complement
systems and processes operating within other organisations.

At issue for service users and carers, as for the key partner organisations to
S5BPT is the level of detail that is available and when information was made
available.

Warrington’s Mental Health Partnership Board convened an extraordinary
meeting to receive a “Change for the Better” presentation. There were many
concerns raised by service users and carers alike which the 5 Boroughs have
endeavoured to consider.



Page 72

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1, Can the PCT’s assure members that the financial implications of the
proposed model of care are robust ?

The PCT’s have available financial information as contained with DRAFT

reports leading up to the final version of Models of Care 12B and financial
reports provided by 5BPT at subsequent Borough specific meetings. The
PCT’s await further detail and clarifications from 5BPT’s in relation to the

movements of funds from current to proposed service configurations.

It is though recognised that a disproportionate position will operate in relation
to the savings sought against each borough. -

HEADLINE COMMENT
HALTON
The following is apparent within the proposed changes presented by 5BPT.

— The level of planned beds (from 69 to 38) could increase the use of Out of
Borough placements at cost to the PCT.

— The removal of the alcohol detoxification bed will potentially impact upon
costs (recognition exists that 5BPT assert that such a facility was never
funded and was based upon bed availability).

— The transfer of a substantial number of patients out of Specialist mental
health service i.e. CMHT's down from 2912 (contracts) to 350 (cases) and
the planned closure of day units (prescribing activity) will have a significant
impact for primary care and there is at this stage no planned investments
into Primary Care Mental Health capability and capacity.

— The proposed model does not include Psychiatric Intensive Care Provision
(PICU) and this is a parallel Business Case at a potential cost to the PCT
of £100K (shared bed with St. Helens).

— The proposed model has been costed for Halton without Early Intervention
Service (EIS) which is a component of Resource and Recovery and a
national requirement. 5BPT have identified additional cost of £186K to
delivery EIS.

— The overall financial context and achieving financial balance will lead to

the highest disinvestments within Halton i.e. £1,899,123 down from
£5,811,958 to £3,975,723.

70




Page 73

ST. HELENS

Further discussions and subsequent information afforded by 5BPT would
indicate either a small increase in investment (+£404K) or a small decrease
(-£250K). The lack of clarify is due to accounting practices within 5BPT and
the continued apportionment of full service costs to either St. Helens or
Knowsley for shared services i.e. In-Patient environments, In-patient
Rehabilitation Services (now closed) and Psychological Therapy Services.

— As with Halton the planned reduction in CMHT’s activity from 1280 to 525
will have an impact upon primary care and again at this stage no additional
investment has been identified to increase capability and capacity within
Primary Care Mental Health Services.

— RRC based at Peasley Cross will require substantial capital funding and
whilst an indication of securement has been given by 5BPT, this needs to
be formalised.

— As already indicated, in relation to Halton, the shared PICU cost to St.
Helens would be £100K.

WARRINGTON

The decrease in in-patient beds from 60 to 32 could increase the need for out
of area placements, at extra cost to the PCT, if the calculations are not
accurate.

The impact the model may have on Primary Mental Health Care Services may
be significant. At this point, there is no plan for investment into this area.

As indicated in St. Helens and Halton, there is a separate funding request
from 5BPT to fund a PICU bed at a cost of £200k to the PCT.

The PCT is awaiting confirmation of understanding that the non-recurrent
financial support of £250K is to cover double running-costs, project
management and dissolution costs.

In conclusion it is evident that further detailed financial work is required to
inform understanding and decision making.

2.2. Are the PCT’s in a position to provide detailed costings to implement
and support the strategy including transitional costs where relevant ?

The PCT's are not able to provide detailed costings to implement and support
the proposed changes, as these are yet to be agreed and would be the
subject of further work. The PCT's have indicated that they would make
available funds to assist with transitional work. The PCT's have identified

71




Page 74

£0.5M additional ONE OFF funds to assist with transition and the
establishment of a Project Team.

2.3.  Interms of the 5BPT recovery plan, why are the savings being
financed solely from Adult Mental Health and only 4 of the relevant
Boroughs ?

This question may require further clarification from 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust, but the PCT’s would consider that this is partly presentational. In
that the 5BPT have parcelled together the financial pressures for 2006 / 2007
which are a combination of over-trading and Cost Releasing Efficiency
Savings (CRES). Together this amounts to a projected over commitment of
£7M.

The 5BPT Recovery Plan seeks to address this by :
— Reducing back office costs by £1M, applicable to all 5 Boroughs.

— Achieve CRES to the tune of £2.6M, equally applicable to all
boroughs.

— Generate the balance through Models of Care, which is in line with
the recently agreed 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategy.

Adult Mental Health Services is the core business of 5 Boroughs Partnership
NHS Trust and is considered the area requiring further modernisation and
redesign. As indicated “back office” costs and CRES will be applied across all
services and boroughs.

2.4. Does the recovery plan have any implications for CAMHS or Older
Peoples Mental Health Services. ?

The proposed changes will not directly impact upon contributions from PCT’s
to 3BPT in relation to the Commissioning of Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services. Clearly 5BPT may apportion back-office costs and CRES to
this service area, but they have indicated no reduction of investment.

With regard to Older Adults, the model does incorporate older adults with
functional mental health needs. 5BPT have indicated that such needs will be
met within Resource and Recovery Centres, that access to Enhanced Day
Programmes and Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment will be available.




Page 75

However, the PCT’s have received no information in relation to the capacity
assumptions made to enable this change to be implemented.

There are concerns that the RCP recommendations for the number of beds,
which has been set at the lower end for adults, does not include consideration
of old age. This in the light of an ageing population does generate real
concerns.

Equally discussions have identified a clear difference allied to inclusion of
Older Adults within Resource and Recovery Centres and the appropriateness
of this.

It should be noted that changes and redesign are ongoing in older persons
mental health services which need to be dovetailed at implementation.

Proposed changes will impact upon Older Adults. Such changes have been

planned more in line with the Adult Mental Health 4 Boroughs Commissioning

Strategy as opposed to the Older Adults Strategy. The dovetailing of these
“two positions requires further work.

2.5. The models of care aims to deliver cost reductions of £7M:
approximately £4.4M from staffing and associated costs, with a further £2.5M
from general efficiency savings. Is this a sustainable solution ?

As explained in 2.1 to 2.4, the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust have
parcelled together cost reductions from Models of Care, back-office cost
savings and CRES to achieve the overall position of £7M. This is within the
context that whilst acknowledging the underlying financial problem, 5BPT did
achieve a balanced financial position at year end 05 / 06.

Given the available information provided, it is difficult to judge sustainability
without further work. Important will be transitional planning, agreed timelines
for implementation and the actual management and implementation of the
change,

2.6. In a presentation, the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust stated that the
proposed model would work, providing there was no disinvestments from the
PCT’s. Can you confirm that this is the case? Can the PCT’s guarantee that |
they are able to sustain this level of investment in future years ?

The PCT’s are not planning to remove investments from 5BPT as a
consequence of the proposed new Models of Care.

Warrington PCT is assured by the 5BPT that post implementation, it will be

investing at a lower level than it is now. There are current redesign projects
and proposals which are currently underway. These will need to be

13




Page 76

completed and the cost implications considered separately to the Model of
Care.

However, PCT’s retain the right as commissioners to explore whether
services can and should be provided by another provider. For example the
proposed Access and Advice Centre does not have to be located within
specialist mental health services and this could sit in Primary Care. This
would involve either a partnership with 5BPT to deploy staff or staff being
employed by the PCT's.

The proposed service changes will not lead to PCT's disinvesting in mental
health services. To the contrary PCT’s will maintain the current levels of
investment to enable 5BPT to work differently and achieve greater efficiency
and effectiveness allied to current investments. 5BPT are seeking to
reconcile activity to the current investment levels. This explains the dual
objectives of service improvements and financial balance.

As with all statutory organisations, the PCT’s are not able to guarantee
investments at a particular level for always. However confidence exists that
PCT investments into mental health services will rise to both keep pace with
pay and prices, but also afford service enhancements. The question will be
the timeframe and level of growth.

2.7. In the 5BPT presentation it was identified that overall investments by
PCT's in mental health services was significantly below the regional and
national average. Will the PCT’s not only sustain current investments but look
to increase, if to a reasonable average, so that community services are not
put at risk because of bed closures ?

The PCT’s accept the below average spend per head of population on mental
health services that has built up over many years and that will take time to
address. However PCT's are firstly seeking to ensure that current
investments are deployed efficiently and effectively to progress positive
outcomes for service users and carers. Equally that the configuration of
services across the whole system is safe, sound and supportive. PCT’s have
invested within mental health services and will continue to do so.

Itis acknowledged that Warrington PCT invest at a higher rate (statistics /
evidence). To this effect, the PCT would be looking to disinvest to enable
investment elsewhere.

The PCT's accept that in-patient services can only be reduced with
corresponding enhancements to community service infrastructures. To-date a
shift has been taking place, as required by the Department of Health, away
from in-patient services to supporting individuals at home and within
community locations. This explains the development of Assertive Outreach,

7




Page 77

Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment and Early Intervention Services, together
with Gateway and Graduate Workers to support primary care.

The Resource and Recovery Centre approach is seeking to re-balance

existing resources to promote the shift away from a reliance upon in-patient
services.

3. BED REDUCTIONS

3.1, Are the PCT' satisfied that the actual and proposed reduction in in-
patient beds is realistic and sustainable ?

The PCT's would make the following overarching comments in relation to the
planned, in-patient bed reductions within each borough, as this is differentially
applied. The following arises :

— The reduction of in-patient bed environments is in line with national policy
and a target of 30%. This is directly related to the establishment of Crisis
Resolution / Home Treatment Services and the switching of resources
away from in-patient services towards community. This position is further
supported by Early Intervention Services, which will identify and intervene
to prevent undetected psychosis and Assertive Outreach Services which
will work intensively with those who are difficult to engage and were
previously characterised by frequent admissions to hospital.

— SBPT are not though seeking to adhere to the national position but
seeking to achieVe greater in-patient reductions, in line with the minimum
recommended population figures identified by the Royal College of
Psychiatrists.

— The proposed in-patient bed reductions is further complicated by the
inclusion by 5BPT of current in-patient beds for Older Adults with
functional mental health needs. At present there are no recommended
bed numbers per population for Older Adults with such needs. The Royal
College of Psychiatrists are currently working to provide advice in relation
to this matter.

— 5BPT have therefore used the Royal College of Psychiatrists minimum
figure for Adults, but in-patient provision within each borough will respond
to both Adult and Older Adult needs.

— In-patient bed reductions can only be achieved, in a safe, sound and
supportive manner, if a comprehensive, complementary and integrated
community infrastructure exists across the whole spectrum of services and
service providers. This is therefore central to any proposed
reconfigurations of services. In essence the balancing of resources to
assure unintended impacts do not occur elsewhere.




Page 78

— The consideration of both Aduilts and Older Adults within the same ward
environments, even with the proposed high staff to patient ratio’s will
present challenges. This has been the subject of further discussion and
the importance of age appropriateness in service terms, For St. Helens,
the proposed move to Peasley Cross will continue current practice of
mixed environments, for Halton and Warrington the proposed change will
move from separate environments to mixed.

HALTON

The context of Halton Borough is such that Crisis Resolution / Home
Treatment Services have only recently been operationalised and that Early
Intervention Services still are not provided. The PCT accepts as
commissioners responsibility for this.

As indicated what is proposed by 5BPT is greater than the national 30%
target. 5BPT will seek to reduce in-patient beds from 60 to 38 by the closure
of two wards, ONE for Adults (which would achieve the 30% i.e. 17 adult
beds) and ONE for Older Adults with functional mental health needs, an
additional 14 beds.

At issue with this approach is the Intention to exceed the national target,
without the proposals assuring community infrastructures (i.e. EIS not costed
in) and to add older adult in-patient facility into the reduction. In essence the
proposed Resource and Recovery Centre for Halton will operate at 38 in-
patient beds for both adults and older adults.

WARRINGTON

As for Halton, what is being proposed by 5BPT is in excess of the 30% target.
The proposals for the reduction in in-patient beds is from 60 to 32, with the
complete closure of the older persons functional illness ward. The PCT have
concerns about the number of beds, the lack of robust community
infrastructure and the ability to manage the two client groups safely in the
same environment.

The proposed reconfiguration of in-patient services, in the absence of a
comprehensive community infrastructure, will involve significant risks to PCT’s
and partners. Such a position is further compounded by the proposed
timeframe for change i.e, Halton will be the first borough to implement the
Resource and Recovery Centre Models.

/6



Page 79

3.2. Given that bed occupancy is currently in excess of 100%, are the PCT's
confident in the Trusts ability to quickly achieve up to 50% bed reductions,
given that there is no sign that the new NHS Teams which are now largely in
place, have had any impact on bed usage by the Trust so far ?

This question reflects both the paucity and reliability of information provided
by 5BBT in that it was the case, and could still be applicable in certain
boroughs, that with the existing in-patient numbers, occupancy levels have
exceeded over 100%. This is though equally related to the introduction or
otherwise of the new services. PCT’s acknowledge that Assertive Outreach,
Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment and Early Intervention Services are either
consolidated, still developing or not in place. As such the proposed changes
will achieve consistency of establishments for all boroughs.

Consequently boroughs continue to operate differentially and this correlates to
varying levels of in-patient occupancy.

We therefore require from 5BPT's actual performance in relation to in-patient
occupancy levels and projected trends. National evidence would support the
Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment target of 30% reduction in in-patient
services.

As indicated earlier the complicating factor remains that 5BPT have imported
Older Adults in-patient facilities into over bed reductions. This explains the
proposed position within Halton and whether the number suggested is
sustainable i.e. the national CRT / HT position is for Adults only.

4. COMMISSIONING STRATEGY

4.1. Are the PCT's satisfied with the proposed model of care and does it fit
with the relevant commissioning strategies ?

The proposed reconfiguration of services provided by the 5BPT is focussed
upon ADULTS of WORKING AGE and OLDER ADULTS with functional
mental health needs.

The proposed model does not therefore address other service areas provided
by the 5BPT, notably :

- Children and Young People (CAMHS)

— Older Adults with organic Mental Health needs.

ﬂ"z ““




Page 80

— Adults with Learning Disabilities

- Substance Misuse Services

The model is evidence based and modelled upon service changes within
NORFOLK and WAVENEY.

(Warrington PCT has some concerns that this is the only model that the 5
Borough Partnership appear to have considered. It has only been in place for
8 months so has it been fully evaluated ? The model took 18 months to
implement, much longer than what the 5 Boroughs are anticipating.)

Early indications within this service indicates :
— Reduced in-patient length of stay
— Decreasing emergency admissions

~ Positive staff commitment.

Such a position is balanced by operational change less than 12 months and
emerging feedback from primary care of increasing referral rates. It is
planned for a team of officers to visit representatives within NORFOLK and
WAVENEY.

The concept of a RESOURCE and RECOVERY CENTRE, supported by
complementary community services does therefore provide a sound platform
to modernise mental health services. The key though remains transition and
implementation recognising that “the devil is in the detail”.

With regard to the recently agreed 4 Boroughs Commissioning Strategies

(Adults of Working Age, Older Aged Adults and CAMHS) a direction of travel

towards New Models of Care was indicated, However, this was within a
-whole systems context and a tiered approach to mental health services.

It is the case that 5BPT are seeking to work differently without fully
considering the implications for the whole systems of support and service
provision. The PCT's would therefore endorse in principle but seek efficient
and effective transition planning to assure implementation.

4.2.  Are the PCT's satisfied that the proposed model is clinically robust ?

The model as proposed by the 5BPT is considered to be clinically robust. In
that it is seeking to comply with the National Policy Implementation Guide for
the Complementary specialisms i.e. CRT / HT , AOT and EIS, it is based upon
evidence in practice elsewhere i.e. NORFOLK and WAVENEY Mental Health




Page 81

Trust and will progress the standards recommended by the National Institute
for Excellence (NICE). Equally the reconfiguration of in-patient services will
comply with Safety First and Safer Services in the levels of patient to staff
ratio’s, fit for purpose physical environments and workforce development to
embrace the proposed service models.

The PCT would seek advice from the specialist provider “as the expert” in
relation to overall clinical governance.

The Warrington PCT Board have requested evidence of the clinical
governance impact assessment to ensure patient safety, risk management
and business continuity.

4.3. How does the proposed model of Care, and the recovery plan, relate to
emerging developments in practice based commissioning ?

Itis at this stage too early to give a definitive position in relation to the
emerging Practice Based Commissioning Consortia within each of the
Boroughs. Presentations by 5BPT’s to the Professional Executive
Committees and Primary Care Trust Boards has identified a need for further
engagement with Primary Care.

Primary Care is supportive of the move from in-patient provision to enhanced
community infrastructures. This change would be in line with the imperatives
for Practice Based Commissioning to further develop primary care capability
and capacity.

As indicated already, such a position recognises a tiered approach to service
provision and advances STANDARDS TWO and THREE of the National
Service Framework i.e. Primary Care and Access.

All of the above though is set within a financial context of constrained
resources across health economies.

5. CONSULTATION PROCESS

9.1. The PCT’s believe that there has been effective consultation with staff
working in the 56 Boroughs Trust and allied professionals, for example GP’s ?

With the progress of the formal consultation and direct meetings held within
the specific boroughs, 5BPT have provided reassurance that staff
consultations have been undertaken. This is a continuous process and both




Page 82

internal and publically held meetings have afforded staff consultation. The
SBPT have also actively engaged with Unions and professional bodies.

Presentations to the Professional Executive Committees of PCT's and PCT
Boards has identified a need for engagement with G.P’s and Primary Care.
Whilst supportive of the shift away from in-patient services, further discussion
is required given the movement of patients.

5.2. Do the PCT's have confidence in the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust
to deliver the proposals as described safely and in full and that appropriate
consultation with all stakeholders will have been undertaken ?

The PCT'’s are at this stage not able to reach conclusions in relation to the
delivery of the proposals to change services. This reflects the on-going
nature of the consultation process, a developing body of information and a
focus, now acknowledged by 5BPT, that agreement in principle is the first
stage of the proposed change programme. As such engagement with 5BPT
is building and more information has been provided to inform decision making
as to the appropriateness of the model.

However, the PCT's are clear that if agreed in principle, critical to the change
programme would be transitional planning, involving all partners and
stakeholders and a robust programme of implementation, that is realistic and
achievable within appropriate timelines. A measured approach, incremental
in nature, is required to assure services are safe.

The PCT’s do accept that the proposed change programme, within a context
of financial imbalance, will challenge the capability and capacity of the
organisation.

SBPT are endeavouring to learn fro the consultations and respond to partners
enquiries in a meaningful manner. The proposals are significant and will
require organisational leadership, workforce developments, strong
communication processes and capacity to project manage the change
programme. To-date 5 Boroughs have no experience of change within
services on the proposed scale.

The PCT's are endeavouring to work with 5BPT and partners to ensure that
the proposed changes, if agreed, are implemented in a robust manner.




Page 83

6. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

6.1. Who is responsible for defining eligibility criteria for Mental Health
Services in the boroughs.

A combination of factors, interdependent in nature apply in relation to service
accessibility and eligibility. A different position operates in part for health and
social care organisations, but recognises the need for organisations to
manage demand for services, within finite resources. In broad terms the
statutory bodies are responsible for demand management and the use of
eligibility criteria.

— For health eligibility is a clinical activity and access to services will reflect
resources deployed. Health will manage demand through waiting lists.

— In the case of Local Authorities Fair Access to Care Services (FACS)is
applied.

— Integrated services will seek to weld these two positions to discharge the
respective responsibilities and duties of each organisation within available
resources.

The key is pétient appropriate care pathways affording progression of an
individuals needs and circumstances.

6.2. The PCT have any analysis of how the tightening of eligibility criteria will
impact on the range of community health services including G.P's. Are the
PCT’s intending to allocate additional resources to G.P’s and other
community services to cover any gap in services currently provided by 5BPT?

The PCT’s are engaged with Local Authority Commissioners and Providers to
complete Whole Systems Impact Assessments. Such Assessments will seek
to identify the potential impacts given the planned reduction to in-patient
services and changes to community services currently provided by 5BPT.
Such a position recognises that services other than those provided by 5BPT
are constrained and in some cases under-developed. As a consequence the
proposed movement of people away from specialist mental health services
will create pressures elsewhere within the local health and social care
systems.

As already indicated at this stage, the PCT’s have identified no additional

investments to absorb the potential implications flowing from the proposed
New Models of Care.

S 3|




Page 84

7. IMPACT ON SOCIAL CARE SERVICES

7.1 Are the PCT'’s satisfied that the Trusts claim that there will be little or no
impact on social care services and costs following bed closures is correct ?

The PCT’s are not able to endorse such a position because the partners are
still seeking to scope whole systems impacts allied to the proposed change.
The new Models of Care has been progressed largely in isolation and is
focused upon 5BPT working differently. There is therefore little evidence to
suggest that 5BPT have considered other implications.

The PCT's are therefore not able to confirm the assertion by 5PT that there
will be no cost consequences to partners. On the contrary the outcome is
likely to be additional costs for both the PCT’s and Local Authority partners.
The New Models of Care will not release resources for reinvestment.
Additionality will be achieved, if at all, through a rebalancing of services.

7.2. Do the PCT's consider that additional pump-priming monies over an
extended period are needed to fund additional community health and social
care services, so that closures can be done safely ?

As already indicated, the PCT's recognise that in-patient services can only be
reduced safely with corresponding enhancements to community services.
The 5BPT are indicating that proposed service model will provide
complementary community services to sustain the proposed levels of in-
patient services.

For St. Helens, as now presented, this has been achieved and 5BPT will only
seek to reduce the RRC by one additional bed. In contrast within Halton, the
PCT is not assured that the planned level of RRV in-patient service is
sustainable. This is because the proposal, as presented will not deliver Early
Intervention Services and involves the loss of ONE Older Adult Ward for those
with functional mental health needs. Equally partners have reported that the
wider community service infrastructure is constrained.

WARRINGTON
Warrington PCT will only be pump-priming, on a non-recurrent basis, £250K,
to facilitate the transition of services —~ project management, double-running

costs and dissolution costs.

Again, there are concerns about the range and robustness of community
services.




Page 85

Therefore a mixed picture prevails across the three boroughs requiring further
discussions before a resolution of the way forward can be achieved.

7.3. Given that Mental Health Services are provided on a very integrated
basis between the Trust and the LA’s and are closely interdependent, are the
PCT's satisfied with-the low level of recognition by the Trust within its process
of Consultation and its published document as to the importance of Local
Authority Social Care Services is achieving bed reductions, social inclusion
and recovery ?

This is, in many ways, the most fundamental of all the questions, in raising the
nature of current relationships and whether partnership is real, It is the case,
that despite formal and informal partnerships to assure integration, co-location
and professionals working together, that the 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS
Trust is a health organisation.

It is therefore difficult to evidence proactivity allied to social inclusion,
recovery or the social model of mental health. This remains a challenge for
5BPT.

Such a position was evidenced in the earlier drafts of Models of Care, which
reconfigured and provided services with health only establishments. The
absence of social care was apparent but reflects both the core Service Level
Agreements i.e., PCT's and the original remit from PCT Chief Executives
allied to the Department of Health policy to achieve financial balance.

It could therefore be considered that in the current integrated service
situations, that Local Authority Social Care establishments will be additional to
the proposed Models of Service as presented by 5BPT. Again this matter
requires further discussion.

8. TIMESCALES

Inthe PCT's views, are the revised timescales for the implementation of the
proposals realistic and achievable ?

Given the scope of the proposed changes, and that partner organisations
were not include in the pre-planning, then the statutory 12 weeks consultation
period has generated undue haste. The danger exists that the condensed
period of consultation will not enable a thorough exploration, given a relatively
low starting point of available information.




Page 86

This explains the 5BPT decision to extend for statutory partners the
consultation period.

The reality now is such that there is a growing sense of mistrust on the part of
partners. The timing and length of consultation is set against the financial
context within which 5BPT is operating.

The PCT's are of the view that the concept and model proposed is
appropriate and a sound basis for modernisation of services.

However, the scale of the proposed changes will require robust transitional
planning and rigorous project management to enable implementation. The
PCT's would therefore require evidence of joint impact assessments and
transitional plans to inform decision-making before any service changes were
implemented.

The original proposals were not realistic or achievable and it is noted that
5BPT will now reschedule the original plans to at least the commencement of
financial year 07 / 08.

9. GENERAL

Are the PCT’s satisfied with the out of hours arrangements proposed in the
reports ?

The information as provided was confusing in relation to Resource and
Recovery Centres and availability Monday to Friday 9.00 a.m. — 5.00 p.m.
SBPT have clarified that this is in relation to- enhanced day therapies.

The Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment Team and in-patient services will
Operate on a 24/ 7 basis to provide appropriate responses to people in acute,
emergency or crisis situations.

10. ASHTON, LEIGH AND WIGAN

Can the PCT's explain the position relating to Ashton, Leigh and Wigan. In
particular the panel would like to know why Ashton, Leigh and Wigan are
being excluded from the consultation when our understanding is that it still
intends to utilise higher tier services from 5BPT. The Panel would also like
clear understanding of what will happen to St. Helens residents who utilise
Wigan Services, some of whom are registered with G.P’s in Ashton, Leigh or
Wigan ?

Ashton, Leigh and Wigan are not subject to the proposed New Models of Care
and therefore the Consultation process, as they have commissioned a
separate review of all mental health services. Ashton, Leigh and Wigan will

34




Page 87

explore a range of service configurations identified through this process to
determine the future providers of mental health services. Ashton, Leigh and
Wigan continue to commission services from 5BPT pending the conclusion of
the options appraisal.

Equally Ashton, Leigh and Wigan were performance managed by Greater

Manchester Strategic Health Authority whereas the other 4 Boroughs relate to
Cheshire and Merseyside Strategic Health Authority.

11.  ST. HELENS, HALTON AND WARRINGTON PCT SPECIFIC

11.1 Is the PCT satisfied that the actual and proposed reduction in in-patient
beds in St. Helens is realistic and sustainable ?

ST. HELENS

Discussions with 5BPT has now clarified the current in-patient position. 5BPT
have confirmed that with the additional investments provided by the PCT
(£1.4M over three years), Crisis Resolution / Home Treatment, Assertive
Outreach and Early Intervention Services are operational. This has enabled
an incremental in-patient bed reduction from 50 down to the present position
of 34. The proposed change to a Resource and Recovery Centre Model will
only involve ONE further bed reduction.

HALTON
See ltem 3
WARRINGTON

See Item 3.

11.2. The Panel would aiso like clear understanding of what will happen to
St. Helens residents who utilise Wigan Services, some of whom are
registered with G.P’s in Ashton, Leigh or Wigan ?

PCT Responsible Commissioner Guidance is based upon G.P. registered
populations and not ordinarily resident, as is the case of Local Authorities.
This explains the ability of residents of one borough, registered with G.P.’s in
another borough able to access health services within that borough. This
position will remain unchanged.

89




Page 88

HALTON SPECIFIC QUESTION

11.3. Can the PCT please clarify whether the funding in relation to Frodsham
and Helsby patients has been resolved ?

This matter remains the subject of on-going discussions involving both 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust Officers and Officers from Halton PCT. 5
Boroughs Partnership NHS Trust, as part of preparatory work for the
proposed New Models of Care, have identified that the current activity
exceeds the £130K p.a. received from West Cheshire PCT. 5BPT have
quantified the value of such activity to be in excess of £1M.

However at this stage West Cheshire are not accepting the case made by
SBPT and this remains the subject of on-going negotiations. The reality is
that costs incurred in the provision of services will not be recovered. The
focus will be to determine the value of the Service Level Agreement for the
remainder of this year and the future thereon.

Whilst this is an important issue, Halton PCT are focused upon the proposed
reduction that is Halton specific i.e. £1,899,123. In that whatever the
resolution is allied to West Cheshire, 5BPT are proposing reductions to the
cost of Halton wide services.




Page 89 AroENDI XU

Halton Pre CFTB ' Crisis Resolution

@ Early intervention

D Asseitive Outreach

OCMHT

@ in-Patients Aduit

@ in-Patients Oider People e
Functional

@ Pyschological Thersples

© Medical and Drugs

mAdult Day Unit

m Other Senvices “

Halton Post CFTB

B CRHT - includes Access &
Advice

m Early intervention
QAssertive Outreach
QCMHT Fl

@ in-Patients Aduit

@ RRC Leadership Team

B RRC Extended Day Treatm:

© Orugs and Other Non-Pay

m Other Senioes

note: Pre Models of Care figures include Non-Pay costs within teams. Medical and
Drugs are shown separately. Post Models of Care figures include Medical costs within
teams but Drugs and Other Non-Pay are separate.

87



Page 90



Page 91

St Helens Pre CFTB

@ Crisis Resolution

= Early Intervention

D Assertive Outreach |

OCMHT

@ in-Patients Aduit

min-Patients Older People
Functional

@ Pyschological Therapies

©1Medical and Drugs

= Rehabliitation Unit

m Eating Disorders

O Adult Day Unit

# Other Senvces

St Helens Post CFTB S GRIT - includes Access &

Advice

®# Early intervention

O Assertive Outreach
OCMHT

» in-Pationts Adult

® RRC Leadership Team

B RRC Extonded Day m-ﬂ‘

© Drugs and Other Non-Pay

mOther Senvices

note: Pre Models of Care figures include Non-Pay costs within teams. Medical and
Drugs are shown separately. Post Models of Care figures include Medical costs within
teams but Drugs and Other Non-Pay are separate.

85



Page 92

90



Page 93

Warrington Pre CFTB wCrisis Resolution

w Eatly intervention

O Asseitive Omreaeh
DCMHT

SAAT

@ in-Patients Aduit

= Pyschological Theraples
@ Medics! and Drugs
mGatehouse

@ Criminal Justice Lisison

o Theraples

Other Senices

Warrington Post CFTB SORIT Inciades Access &

Advice

m Early Intervention

o Assertive Qutreach
OCMHT

m in-Patients Adult

@ RRC Leadership Team

mRRC Extended Day Tmatmonﬂ*

o Drugs and Other Non-Pay

| Other Senices

|

note: Pre Models of Care figures include Non-Pay costs within teams. Medical and
Drugs are shown separately. Post Models of Care figures include Medical costs within
teams but Drugs and Other Non-Pay are separate.

91



